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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

Directors’ REPORT _
for the vear ended 31 December 2018

The Directers present thelr annual reportion the.affairs of the Company together with the finandial statements
and the auditor’s report for the yvear ended 31 Décember 2018, :

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal actiVity of the Company is the provision of cellular radio telecommiunication services. There have
begn no significant changes in'the Company’s business during the year.
SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes to the autharised -and issued share capital during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND.

The profit. for the year amounted to K64.859 million (2017: K363.978 million). The Key reason-for drop in
profit for the year 2018 is devaluation of Kwacha. The impact of the sameis K 259.71 million. The Company
paid dividends. during the year amounting to K416 million in respect of the financial year ended 31 Decémber
2017 (2017: K416 million for year 2016); The Directors recommended an interim dividend for the year ended
31 Decemnber 2048 amounting to K124.80 million {2C17:. nil). The interim dividend has already been paid.
Further Directors will not propose a final dividend for the year ended.31 December 2018 (2017: K416 million).

Directors

The following Directors he_ld'__offi'te. during the year and to the date of this report:

Name Role. Date of appointment/resignation
K. Manica Musonda (Non-ED) Chairperson Appointed-on 23 March 2016
Apoorva Mehrotra (ED) Managing Director Appointed on 1 March 2018

Peter Correia (ED) Managing Director Reésigned on 28 February 2018

Jito Kayuimba (Non-ED) Board Member Appointed ori 23 March 2016
laideep Paul (ED). Board Member Appoirited on 2 November 2016
Raghunath Mandava {ED) Board Member Appointed on 4 November 2017

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RENUMERATION'

The total remuneration of employees difing the year amounted to K117.898 million {2017: K128,550
million ), The average number of employees for each month of the year was as follows:

‘Month 2018 2017
January 217 232
Febriary 218 234
March 215 234
April 214 232
May 214 232,
June 213 226
July 214 224
August 213 228
September 204 226
October 203 226
November 206 224
Decémber 207 224

HEATH AND SAFTEY

The Company has. policies. and procedures to safeguard the occupational health; safety and weifare of its
emipioyess,

GIFTS AND DONATIONS

During the year the Company made donations of K0.260 million (2017: K0:985 miilliony. The donations are
t_oward's-_ccrporate_'social respensibility.

ROAMING

Roaming revenue is earned’ from foreign telephone operators when their subscribers utilise the Company's
network. The Company accrued reaming revenue amounting to K31.153 million {2017: K30.252 million}.




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

Directors’ REPORT {CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Company purchased property, plant and equipment amounting ta K535.008 million (2017: K315.190
million} during the year. In the opinion of the Directors, the recoverable amount of property and equipment is
riof less than the carrying value. Figures of _2018_3 includes’ Nit international bandwidth purchased on
indefeasible right of use basis (2017: K107.630 millicn).

AUDITORS

The Company’s Auditors, Messrs Deloitte & Totiche, indicated thelr willingness to continue in office. A
resolution proposing thelr reappaintment and. autherising the Directors.to fix their remuneration will be put to
the Annual General Meeting.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Airtel Networks _Zarribi_a_ plc takes the issue of corporate governance seriously, The Company's focus is to have
a sound corporate dovernance framework that contributes to. improved corporate performante and
accouritability in creafing long. term shareholder value.

The Board mieets at least four times. a year and concerns itself with key matters and the responsibilities for
implerneniting the Company’s strategy is delegated to management. The Board of Directors continues to
provide considerable depth of knowledge and experierice to the business.

There-is strong focus by the Audit Committee on matters relating to financial operations; fraud, application of
accounting and control standards and results. The Audit Committee alsé meets at least four times a year,

The Company has put in place a Code of Conduct and Anti- Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy that sets out the
standards on how staff should behave with all stakeholders. An éffective ‘monitoring mechanism £o'support
management’s objective of enforcing the Code of Conduct and Anti- Bribery & Anti-Corruption has.been
developed and is being used across the Company.

By order of the Board.

Senjd Shamwsans-Chinganya.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date:’ 18 February 2019
LUSAKA




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC.

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the vesr ended 31 December 2018

The Companies Act, 2017 requires the Birectors to preparé financial statements for each financial year that
give a true and fair view of the- state of affairs. of the Company as:at the end of the financiat year and of its
findncial performance. If -also reguires the Directors. to ensure that the Lompany keeps proper -accounting
records that disclose, with reasonable "accuracy, the fihancial position of the Company They ~are also
responsibie- for safeguardirig the assets of the Company. The Directors :are further réquired to ensure the
Company: adheres to the corperate governance principles or practices c¢ontained in Part VII's Sections 82 to
122 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Dirgctors are responsible for the maintenanca of adequate accounting records and the preparation and.
integrity .of the financial staterdents and relatéd. information. The independent external auditors, Messrs
Deloitte & Touche, have audited the financial statements and their report is shown on pages 4 to 7.

The Directors are also responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to- provide
reasonable’ but not absolute, assurance as to the relaab:llty of the finaneial statemnents, and to adequately
safeguard, verify -and rainfain accountablilty for assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatements.
Thé systems @re implemented and monitored by suitably traired personnel with an appropriate segregation of
authority and duties. Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that any material
breakdowr in the functmmng of these controls, procedures and systems has’occurfed during the year under
review,

The annual financial statements are preparad on a going concern-basis, Nothing has come to the attention of
the Directors to.indicate that the Cempany will not remain a going conceri-in the foreseeable future,

in the opition of the Directors:.

© the statement of profit. or loss and othér compréhensive income is drawn up 50 as to give'a frue and fair
view of the profit of the Company for the yearended 31 December 2018

e the statement of financial position-is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state .of affairs of
the Company as at 31 December 2018;

e there are reasenable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when
they fall due;

¢ the financial statements have been prépared in secordance with Interpational Financlal Reporting
Standards-and inthe manner required by the Companies Act, 2017; and,

e the Directors have inplemented atid further adhered to'the corporate governance principles or practices
contained in Part VII, Sections 82 to 122 of the Companies Act, 2017,

Approval of the financial statements

"The financial. Statements of the Company -as indicated abave, were approved by the Girectors on
18 Februarg 2019 . ed on behalf of the Board by

~

K. Monics Musonda Apoorva Mehrotra
CHIARPERSON MANAGING DIRECTOR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members. of .
Airtel Networks Zambia Plc

Report on the financial statements
Opinien

We have-audited the finandial statéments of Airtel Networks Zambia Plc set out on pages 8 to 49; which
comprise the statement of financial position 58 at 31 December 2018, the staterment of profit or loss and
ather comprehensive income, the statement.of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; .and the notes te the fihancial staternents, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

‘In our opinien, the financial statements. give a trug and fair view of the financial positien of Airtel Netwoiks
Zambis Plcas at 31 'D.ece_mber 2018, and of its finaricial peiformance -and-cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner reguired by the Compariies
Act, 2017.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs). Our res;:onsablhtles
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities. for the Audit of the Financial
Statements séction of our repart. We are mdependent of the company in-accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountarnts Code of Ethics for Brofessional Accountants ("IESBA" code), together
with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Zambia, We Kave
fulfitled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code: We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is'sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters: are those matters. that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
‘audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were. addressed in the context of our
“audit of the financial statéments as @ whole,-and in formiing bur opinion thereon, and we do not provide -8
separate opinion an these matters.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Revenue recognition
*The determination of revenue relating to the|Our procedures mcluded but were not imited to the
usage of airtime; following:

« Accounting tregtiment for promotional products|- Obtained an understandmg of the company's revenue
and bundled products; streams. .

«The revenue computation process is  highly| Performied walléhroughs of the different classes of
avtomated, complex in nature, :charaéterised by|revenue. trarisactions and evalusted the design and
high volume-of 'data and dynamic; and implementation of controls .

* The revenue recording invalves a manual transfer|- Obtained an understanding of promotional .preducts ‘and
of inforrnation -from the IT billing: system: to thelbundied products configurations to identify the related
general ledger. revenue streams and assesséd the revenve recognition
criteria for each stream for compliance with the applicabie
atcourniting standards.

» Invelved-our Risk Advisory specialist to test the ¢ontrols
within the billing systems and the control environment
relevant to revenue., The procedures included but not
limited to the following:
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Key audit matters.

How our a.udit-'add're.'ssed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition {continued)

As a result of the significance of this process; the
timing of the revenue recognition, volume of]
transactional dat_a invalved, manual. |nterf_e_rence in
the transfer of data from the IT billing system to
the.general ledger, this'was considered a key audit
matter,

The revenue recagnition palicy ‘is disclosed in Note
3 (c] and revenue recognised disclosed in Note 7.

= Performed an TN {Billing system) to GL {(Geheral Ledger
Financial Reportmg) Reconciliation. We ensured that
amount captured in IN-GL reconciliation was reflected in
IN dosing balance..and GL in books subject to defined
threshold.

* Reviewed Key revenue controls performed by the
Company's Reveriue Assurance (RA) team to address the
risk of revenus leakage. We verified the RA Dashboards
{templates. on which control activities are performed) were
prepared and signed by the RA team on predefined
intervals.

In addition to the. above we performed detailed
substantive testing. of journa! entries processes around
revenue to.ensure these were appropiiately authorised,
complete and accurate.

We found t'__he operation of the controls over révenue to be
effective; and our substantive testing did not reveal any
material misstatements,

IT systems and controls over financial reporting

We jdentified financial reporting as an area of
focus as the Company's financial accounting and
reporting. systems are dependent on IT systems
and identified a risk that automated accounting
procedures “and reldted IT dependeént manual
controls may not be designed and operating
effectively..

* We assessed and tested the design and aperating
effectiveness of the controls over the continued .integrity
of the IT systerns that are relevant to finandial reporting,

* We examined the framework of governance gver the
Company's IT organizatiori and the controls .aver programi
development and changes; access to programs and data
and IT operations, including: compensating controfs wheie
required,

* We' assessed the logical access management and
segregation of duties controls as well as. check:ng the
appropriateness of the integratlon of the various systems.

= Where necéssary we also carried out direct tests of
certain aspects of the security of the Company's IT
systams includlng access management and segregatlon of
duties. The combinatich of the tests of the centrois and
the direct tests that we carried out gave us sufficient
evidence to enable us to rely an-the continued and proper
operation of the Companys IT systems for the purposes
of our audit,




Key audit matters, How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Tax matters
The ‘entity operates in a fairly complex tax|We performed the following procedures among others:
environment.  There is. inherent judgement _
involved in determining. current tay liability. + Assessed the design of the contrals and operating
effectiveness around the management of the'tax affairs of
the company dand assessment of the accuracy of .the tax
compuiations.

This matter has been considered a key area of|» Reviewed cofrespondence between the ‘ZRA and the
focus due to the amounts involved as shown in company to identify potential liabilities.

note 12,
» Engaged our tax. specizlist to review the tax coimnputation
for the year to ensure compliance with the tax legislation.

Based on ‘our -audit, there were no uncorrected
misstatements noted.

‘Other information

Thé Dirgctors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report
as required by the:Companies. Act, 2017, which we obtained prior to the date of this. auditors’ report, and the
annual report which we aobtained prior to the date of this auditors' report. The other information does not
Include the financial statements. and pur auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does. not cover the other-information and we do not express any form
of assurance o conclusion thereoh.

In connection ‘with our -audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to -read the other information
and, in deirg so, consider whether the _ot_-h_e_r information is materially inconsistent -with the financial
statements or our knowledgé obtained in-the audit, or otherwise appears to be. materially. misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other informatiori that we obtatned prior to the date of this-
auditor’s. report, we conclude that thereis a material misstatement of this other infermation, we are requlired
to repert- that fact. We haye nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial stateirents

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with international Financiat Reporting Standards.and in the manner required by of the Companies
Act, 2017, and for such internal contiof as.the Directors. determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial statements that are frée frorm matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as-a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going conceri and using the going
concern basis of accoufiting unless the Directors either ‘intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but'to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financi_él_ statements:

Qur objective$ are Fo obtain reasonahble assurance about whether the financlal statements as-a whole are free
from miaterial misstatsinent, whether ‘due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
‘apinion, Reasonable assurance is a high lével of assurance, but'is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise fromy
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, ‘they could :reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users-taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance: with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
sceplicisimi throughout the audit, We also:




Auditer's responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements {Continued)

»  ldentify and assess the nisks.of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or efror, design snd purform audit procedures respoinsive te those risks, ‘and ablain audit evidence that .
15 sufficient aad appropriste to provide o basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting & materiat
misstaterment résulting from froud 15 hwgher than tor one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgeiy, inté'r\,i'ldnaI'_rf)_m_iss”to'ns;,-m'r_srepresentations, ur the override. of internal control,

«  Obhtan an understanding of inteértal control relevant to the audit s grder Lo desion audit procedures that
are apprepiate in the drodmstances, but nob for the purpose of expressing an optnion on the
affactivenass of the company’s internai conbiol.

=+ Evaludté the appropdataniss of accounting potices used and-the reasonablencss of accounting estimates

angd reiated disclosures made by managemend.

o Conclude on thie appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
hased op the avdit ewidente oblsined, whether a materfal unceftainty exists related to evenls or
condwions that may cast significant douLl. on-the company's abijlity fo continue as 2 .going concern, If wa
conclude that 3 material um,utamw exists, we are regquirad to fdraw attention i dur auditor's Teporl to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such discigsures ate inadequate, to medify our
dpfrtios. Our Conclusions are Dased on the audit evidence ohtamed up to Lhe gate of our auditors’ report,
Huwever, TUlura events or conditions may cause the'company Lo, ceadse Lo continue ds a going concerm,

fvaluate the averall presentation, structre and centent of the fimaricial statements, in@uding the
disclosures, and whathier the finangial statements represent the underlying trangactions and events in a
matier that achizves fair présentalion.

We communicate with the directars regarding, amongst other matters, the plannsa cepe and timing-of the

audit ant signticant audit findings, including any significant dehciencies in mternal controf that we jdenlify
during Huc audit,

We also provide the dwectors with a statoment that we have complied with relevant ethigal reégquirements’
regarding wdependence, and o communicate with them ail relationships and other malters that may
reascoatily be thoughi to gear on cur wdependence ard where applicable, related safeguards.

From’ the rmatters communicalied with the difectors, we determine those malters that were of mast
significance in fhe- audit of \he {inancial staternents of the current peried and. are thercfore the key ‘Audit
mattérs. We destribe these nuittdes In our auditors' réport unless lave or régulation preciudes public disclosure

aboul 4rg matter or when, in ext tremely rare drowimslances, we detecmine that o matter should not be

communicated in aUr Fepart because the adverse. consequences. of doing so would reasanably be expected to
auiwelgh the pubhe interest benefits of such communicanan.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Compames Act, 2017 rcquirgs that In carrying oot ouf audit, we consider end report to you on tho
fllowing matter. we confirm that, o our opinton, the actdurting records, other récords and registers
réduired by the Act have been preperly kept in acéordance with the acl.

Fyrthicr: Sethion 259 of the Compamies Act, 2017 renquires that it careyving out our audll, we consider and
report that.
s Inore is'na relabionshio, interest or dept which we have.withrand iy the Comnany; and

. There are ne serious breadhes of curporate governance prmCiple% cr practices Ly.the Diregtors, This
statermnent is made oo the basis of the corporate goverrdnice provisiont as ehshrined In Part Vit -
TosRerate govarnante sgrton of the Comparies Act, 2017,

#. CHIMUNYA [AUD/FO000154)
PARTNER

Date: 1 March 2019




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMEBIA PLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Kwacha'0o0 2018 2017
Note
Revenue 7 2111 060 2 195 663
Cost of sales (159 580) £130 547)
Gross profit 1951480 . 2065116
‘Other operating fncq_m‘e 8 2627 1754
Distribuition ‘costs (819 282) (851 930)
Administrative expenses (555 253) {(638.329)
Operating profit 578 572 576 611
Finance income 8 793 3 740
Net exchiarige lossés 9 (241 068) {37 398)
Finance costs 10 {108 817) (88 416)
Profit before tax 11 230 480 454537
Income tax expense 12 (165 621) {90 559)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 64 859 363 978
Basic and difuted earnings per share {(Kwacha) 13 0.62 3.50

‘There wera no items of other comprehensive income for theyear (2017: Nil).




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMEIA PLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 Decernber 2018

Kwacha'000 Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Non-current-assets
Property , plant and equipment 16 1 893 942 1712468
Intangible assets 17 96 159 106 213
Déferred tax assef ('I'}EE.)_ 15, 32 616 156 581
2022717 1 835 262
Current assets
Inventories _ 8 675 1836
Trade and .other receivables 19 128 993 226 784
Contfact assets 20 33 415 28125
Derivative financial instruinents 33 _ 665 2 467
Amounts due froin relatéd parties 28 151 772 137 59_1
Bank and cash balances 21 32 258 2591
347 778 399 394
Total assets 2 370 495 2,234 656

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 14 1040 1 040
‘Share prerdium 14 24.962 24 9562
Retained earnings (37 784) 438 157
Total equity (11 782) 464 159

MNon-current liabilities _ _
‘Obligation under finance lease 27 751 766 703 D49

Current liabilities.

Bank overdraft 21 32 449 21 657
Short term borrowings 24 715608 209 979
Trade and other payables 22 522 097 531 108
.Contract liabilities 23 101 608 101 646
Derivative financial instruments: 33 3.730 3237
Amounts due to refated parties 29 65 372 17 417
Obligation under finance lease 27 a1 210 69 040
‘Current tax payable (net) 12 88 337 113 364

1630511 1067 448.
Total Habilities ‘2382277 1770497
Total equity and liabilities 2370495 2234656

The responsibifities of the Compariiy's Directors with regard to the. preparation of the:financial statements are
set out on page 3. The financial statements on' pages 8 to 49 ‘were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 18 Fuary 2019 and were signed on its-behalf by:

—
. Monita Musonda Apaorva Mehrotra
HAJRPERSON MANAGING DYRECTOR.




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year énded 31 December-2018.

Kwacha'000D

Balance at 1 January.2017

Total comprehenstve income for the year

_Finaf dividend declared for 2016
Transfer to dividend payable
Balance at 31 December 2017

Balance at 1 Januar\r-ZD_lS

Total comprehensive iricome for the year
Final dividend declared for 2017

Interim dividend declared for 2018
Transfer to dividend payable

At 31 Pecember 2018

Share Share Dividend Retained

N'ofes capital premium reserve  earnings Total
1040 24 962 - 490 17¢ 516181

- - - 363 978’ 363 978

- - 416000 (416 000) _ -
30 - - (416 0D0) - {416-000)
1040 24 9562 - 438 157 464 159

1040 24 962 - 438157 464 159

- - - 64.859 64859

- - 416000 (416000) -

30 - ~ 124800 (124 800) -
30 - - (540.800) - (540 800}
1040 24962 -~  {37784) (11782}

19




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the vear ended 31 Decarmnmber 2018

Kwacha'g0o:

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from dperations
Interest received

Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash-flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase. of intangible assets:

Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from short term borrowings
Repayment of short terr borrowings
Interest paid on finance lease
Repayment of finance lease
Dividends paid.te sharehalders

Net cash flows used in findncing activities

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Net increase/(detrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash-equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at-end of the year

11

Note-

28

16

16
17

24
24

27
30

21

2018 2017
1077195 772 612
793 3 740
{27 226} {6 890)
(196 683) (249 425)
854 079 520 037
{535 008) (207 560).
- {107 630)
{535 008) (315 190)
938 570 397 125
(554 659) {211 Bony
(81 591) (81 526)
{61 716) (56 035)
{540 800Y {416 673)
(300 196) (368 909)
18 875 (164 062)
{12 066) 144 996.
{191) {19°0686)




AIRTEL NETWORKS. ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE'-F_INAN CIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December. 2018

i,

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Airtel ‘Networks Zambia piciis incorporated in Zambia under the Companias. Act, 2017 as a public: limited
company, -and-is domiciled in Zambia. The Company is listed on the Lusaka Stock Exchange and was
inéorpcrated in 1997 as Celtel Zambia Ple. In April 2013,.there was a change of name and the address of
its registéred office is:

Airtel House

Corner of Addis Ababa Drive

and Great East Road, Stand 2375

P.0. Box 320001

Lusaka

The Company's principal activities are disclosed on page:1 of the director's report.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 Decembér 2018 were authorised for issue in accordance
with & resolution of the directors on I8 February 2019,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended Standards that are effective for the current year
Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year,; the Company has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014).and
the related consequential amlendments to other IFRS Standards that are effective for an annual period
that begins on or after 1 January 2018. Thé transition provisions of IFRS 9 allow an entity not to restate
comparatives.

IFRS S introduced new requirements for: _ _ _
1_}-’The...class'rﬁ'caticn and measurement of financial -assets and financial liabifities,.
2} tmpairment of financial assets, and

3) General hedge accountirig.

Details of these pew requirements as well as their impact on the Company’s financlal statements.are
described belaw.

The Company has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9,

(=) Classification and measurement of financial assets

The. date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Company has assessad its existing financial
assets an financial liabilities in-terms of the requirefments of IFRS 9) Is 1 January 2018: Accordingly, the

Compary has applied the requirements of TEFRS 8 to instruments that z_:q_nﬁinue 10 be-recognised as at 1
Januvary 2018-and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised

‘as at 1 fanuary 2018, Comparative amounts in relation to instruments that continue to be recognised as

at 1 January 2018 have not been r.esi‘.ajted as the impact-has been deemed to be.insignificant.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of 'IFRS 9 are required to be measured

‘'subsequently.at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the
Hnancial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

‘Spedificaliy:

» debt instruments that are held within 2 business' model whose objective is. to. collect the contractual

cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal-and interest on the

principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at armortised cost;.

- debt instruments that are held within a business made! whose objective-is both to tollect the- contractual

tash flows and. to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractua! cash flows that arée solety
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured sghsequently at

Tair value threugh other comprehensive ihcorme (FYTOCI):

o all other débt investments and equity investments are measured -subsequently at fair value through

profit or- loss {FVTPL). Despite the foregoing, the Company may make the following irrevocable

election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

12




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
for the year eivded 31 Decernber 2018

2,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and amended Standards that are effective for the current year (Continued)

Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

ta) Classification and measurément of financial asséts {Continued}

e the Company may irrevocably élect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an: equity investment
that is oeithér held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirér in a business
combinatien in other compreherisive income; and

» the Company fnay ifrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI
criteria as-myeasured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismateh.

‘In the current year, the Company has tiot designated ‘any ‘debt investments that meet the amortised cost

or FYTOCT criterfa as measured at FYTPL.

‘When a ‘debt investment measured at FVTOCL is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previpusly
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment. When an eguity investment designatéd as measured at FYTOCI s -derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income. is Ssubsequently transferred
to retained earnings,

Debt |nstruments that are measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to
impatrment. See {b) below,

The directors of ‘the Company reviewed and ‘assessed the Company’s existing financial assets as &t 1
January 2018 based on the facts and circumnstances that existed at that date and concluded that the
initial application of IFRS 9 has had an insignificant impact on. the Campany s financial assels as regards

their classification and measurément:

» financial assets classified ds held-to-maturity and loans and recelvables under 1AS 39 that were
measured akt arortised cost continue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9 as they are heid
within & business model-to: collect contractual cash flows and these cash-flows consist solely of paymeénts
of principal and interest on the principal amount: outstanding.

{b) Impairment of financial assets

In relation ty the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requirés an expected cradit. loss inodel as

bpposad to an incurred credit {oss model under IAS 39. The. expected credit lass .model requires the

Company to account for expected credit losses .and changes in those expected credit {osses st each
regorting. date to reflect ¢hanges in credit risk since initiat racogmtmn of the financial assets; In other
words, it is.no longer necessary for a credit event to havé.-occurred before credit losses are recognised.

'Specrr“caily, IFRS 9 requires the Company to recognise a loss allowance for expected credit tosses on:

(1} Debt investments measured subsequently at-amortised cost or at FVTOCI;
(2} Lease receivables:

(3) Trade. receivabies and contract assets; and

{4} Finandia! guarantee:contracts to which the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply.
Ia particular, IFRS 9 requires the Company to measure the loss alfowance for a financial instrument at an

-amount equal to the'lifetime expécted ‘credit losses {ECL) if the.credit rigk on that financial instrument has

increased significantly ‘since initial recognition, or If the financial nstrurnent is-a purchased of origihated
credit-impaired financial asset.

However, if the credit risk on 3 financial instrument has not increased 5|gn|f|cantly since initial recognition
{except for a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset); the Company is required to
measure the loss. dllowance for that financial instrumant at an amount equal to' 12-ménths ECL. IFRS §
also requires a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance at an amount egual to lifetime ECL
for trade receivables, contract assets.and lease receivables in certain circumstances.
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AIRTEL NETWORKS. ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.1 New and amended Standards that are-effective for the current year (Continued)

Impact of initial application of IFRS 9. Financial Insfru_me'nts (Continued)
(b} Impairment of financial assets {Continued}.

For the purpose of assessing whether there has been a significant ‘increase in credit risk since initigl
recognition of financlal instruments that remain recognised on the date of initial apphcatmn of IFRS 9 {i.e.
1 January 2018), the directors have compared thé credit risk of the respeétive financial mstruments on
the date of their initial recognition to-their credit fisk as'at-1.January.2017.

‘The resuit of the assessment Is as follows:

Ttems ex&stlng as at 01/01/18 Note Credit risk attributes 1 Januairy 2017 and 1

that are subject to the January 2018

Impadirment provisions of IFRS

9

Amount due from related parties 29 Amounts due- from related parties are assessed

regarding credit risk- at each reporting date. As the
Same are-closely monitered and coritralled by the same
managernent, theré is no provision matri% being
foilowed on ageing. basis.

There have been no instances.observed in the past
-‘where colléction are assumed to bé af risk for such
related party recetvable.

The Company Hses a provision matrix to measure the
expected credit loss of trade. receivables. Based on the
industry practlces and the business envtronment in

e s . which the eritity operates; managament considers that
Contract assets. 20 the trade recgivables are credit impaired it the
payments are more ‘than 90 days past due
(Interconnect more than 9 Months).

Trade and other receivables 19

All bank balances are-asséssed to have low credit risk
Cash and bank 91 at each reporting date as they are held with
' reputable international banking institutions.

(<) Classification and mreasurement of finarnicial liabilities

A significant change introduced by IFRS. 9 in the dlassification and messurement of finanétal liabilitfes
relates fo the dccounting for changes in the fair value of @ financial liability designated as -at FVTPL
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the issuer,

‘Specifically, TFRS 9- requires that the changes in the-fair value of the finangal liabitity that is attributable

to changes in the credit risk of that liability .be presented in other comprehensive income, nlass the
recognition of the: effects of changes. in the Ilab}htys credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarde an accouriting misrateh i profit or loss. Changes in fair value: attributable ta a financial

.I!abllltys credit’ risk. are not subsequently reclassified: to, profit or lgss, but are instead transferred to

retained earnings when the financial liability is derecogmsed.

-Previously, under IAS 35, the entire .amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability

designated as at FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the classﬁ“catmn and measurement of the:Company's

Ffinancial liabilities,
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
“for the v_ear-ende‘d 31 December 2018

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS {CONTINUED)

2.1 New and amended Standards that are effective for the current:year.(Continued)

Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {continued)
(d)} General hedge accounting

The new general hedge accounting requiremenits retain the three types ‘of hedge accounting., However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
spetifically broadéning the types of instruments that qualify ¥or hedging instruments and the types of risk
companents of non-financial iterns that are. e!lg]b[e for hedge accounting. In addition, the effedtiveness
test has-been replaced with the principle of an *economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge

-effectiveness. is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requnrements about the Company’s risk

management activities héve alse been introduced.

In accordance with IFRS 9’5 transition provisions for hedge acceunting, the Company has applied -the

IFRS 9 hedge acceuriting réequirements prospectivély from the date of ihitial appllcation on 1 January

2018. The Company’s qualifying hedging refationships in place as at 1 January 2018 also qualify for hedge
accounting in -accordance with IFRS 9 and were therefore regarded as. contsnumg hedging réelatipnships.
No rebalancnng of any of the hedging relationships was necessary on 1 January 2018. As the critical terms
of the hedging instruments match those of their corfesponding hedged iteins, all hedgmg relationsh:ps
continue to be effective under TFRS 9's effectiveness assessment requirements, The Company has also
not designated any hedglng relationships under IFRS 9 that would not have met the. quahfymg hedge.
'accountlng criteria-under1AS 39.

irrRs @ requires hedging gains ahd losses to be'recognised as an adjustment to the initial carrying amoéunt
of non-financial hedged items (basis adjustment), In addition, transfers from thé hedging reserve to the
initial carrying. amount of the hiedged itern are. not reciassification adjustments under IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Stateménts and hence they do not affect. other comprehensive income. Hedging gains and
losses subject to basis adjustments are categorised as amounts that wiit fiot be subsequently reclassified

to profit-or loss in other comprehensive income, This. is consistent with the Company’s practice prior to

the adoption of 1FRS 6.

Consistent with prior periods, when a forward contract is used in a cash flow Hedge or fair valug hedge

-relationship, the. Company has designated the change in fair value of the entire forward contract, ie.
including the forward element, ‘as the hedgihg instrument.

‘When the option contracts are used ta hedge the forecast: transactions; the Company designates. only the
intrinsic vaiue of the options as the hedging instrument. Under 1AS 39 the chariges iy the fair valué of
time value of option {i.e. non-designated compoenent} were recognised-immediately in profit or loss. Under
IFRS 9, the changes inthe time value of the options that'relate to the hedged itemn {‘alignedtime vajue”
are recognised in other comprehensive. income and accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve within
gquity. The amounts accumulated in equity are. éither reclassified to profit or loss whén the hedged ‘item

affects profit or loss or removed directly from equity and incfuded in the carrying amount of non-financial

iter. IFRS 9 requires that the accounting for non-designated time value of option should be applied

retrospectively. This only “applies to hedging refationships that existed :at 1. January 2017 or were
designated thereafter.

{e) Disclosures in relation to the initial application of IFRS 9

There were no finaricial assets or financial liabilities which the Company had previcusly designated as at
FVTPL under 1AS 39 that were subject to reclassification or which the Company has elected to reclassify
upon the applicatmn of IFRS 9. There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the Gompany
has elected to designate as at FYTPL at the date of initial application of IFRS 9.

Impact of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from C’cmtraci:s with Customers

In the current year, the Company has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended in April 2016) which is effective for-an annual péried that begins: on or aftér 1 Janiuary 2018.
IFRS 15 intreduced a 5-step approach to revenue recognition. ‘Far more preseriptive guidance has been

‘added in IFRS 15 to deal with. specific scenarios, Details of the new requirements as well as their impact

on the Company’s financial statéments are descrlbed belaw.
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '(CONTINUE'D)_
for'the year ended 31 December 2018

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Impact of application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The Company has adopted IFRS 15, “Revenue from Confracts with Customers’ applying the cumulative
effect method applied retrcspectlvely to the contracts that are not completed as of 1 January 2018 (belng
the date of initial application). Accordingly, the comparative information has not been restated. The effect’

on adoptson of the said standard is insignificant on these financial statements.

Revenue i5 recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to the customer at the
corisideratign which the Company has receivéd or expects to receive in exchange of those products or

services, net of any texes / duties, dlSCCIUntS and process waivers, In ordér to determine if it i5 acting as a

principal or -as an agent, the Company assesses whether it is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
performance obligatlon

IFRS 15"uses the térmscontract asset’ and “contract liability’ to describe what might more commonly be
knewn as ‘accried revenue’ and ‘deferred revenug’, however the Standard does not prohibit an entity
from using alternative descriptions. in the statement of financial gosition. The Company. has adopted the
terminology used in IFRS 15 to describe such balances.

The Company’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail in note 3 below, Apart
from providing more extensive disclosures for thé Company's revenue transactions, the applicaticn of

'IFRS 15. has not had a significant impact on the financial position and/or financial performance -of the

Company.

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendmients to IFRS Standards and
Interpretations. issued by the International Accounting ‘Standards Board (1ASB} that are effective for an
annuat pericd that begiris o or after 1 January 2018, Their adoption has not-had any material Impact on
the disclosures or on the amdunts réported in these financial statements.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency 1FRIC 22 addresses how to determirie the ‘date of transaction’ for
Transactions and Advance the purpose of detérmining the eXchange rate to wse on initial
Consideration recegnition of an asset, expense or income, when consideration for

that item has been pa(d or received in advance in a foreign curiency
‘which resulted in ‘the recognition of a nen-monetary asset or
nen-manetary liability (for example, a non-refundable deposit or
deferred revenug),

The Interpretation specifies that the date .of transaction is the date
on which the entity mltlaily recognises the rion-monetary assef or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or recéipt of advance
‘cansideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in-advance,
the interpretation requirés -an entity to determine the date of
transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Ceompany has not applied the following new
and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective,

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendrents to IFRS 9 Prepayment Featurés with Negative Cormpensation
Amendm‘ents to IAS 19 Employee  Plan Afendment, Curtailment or Settlement
1FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The directors do not. expect that the adoptiof of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on
the financial statements of the Company-in future periods, except as noted below:
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year-ended 31 Dectember 2018

2.

2,2

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
New and revised Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

General impact of application of I[FRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the jdentification of isase arrangements :and their treatment
in.the financial statements for both Iessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance
including 1AS 17 Leases and ‘the related Interpretations when it becomes effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after.1 January 2019. The date of initial application of IFRS 16. for'the Comipany will be 1
January 2019.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16-substantially carries. forward. the lessor accounting requirements
inTAS 17,

The Company has chosén the modified retrospective application of IFRS 16 in accordance” with IFRS
16:C5(b}. Conséquently, tha '_Com_pan;y_ will not reinstate the comparative information.

Impact gn Lessee Accounting

Gperating feases.

IFRS 16 will change how the Company accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under
TAS. 17, which vrere gff-balance sheet.

-On initial appl’icaffon- of IFRS 16, for. al! leases {except-as noted below}, the Company will:

2) 'Recognise r|ght~0f-use assets and Iease liabilities i the statemient 6F financial position, inltially
measured at the present value of the. future lease payments;

_b_) Rec_ogn[se_'.depre_c:atlon'-of nght-of—use;asse__t_s and interest .on. lease liabilities in the Statement of
profit or loss;

<) Separate,‘the total ampurit of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing
activities)-and’ interest {presented within operating activities) in the cash flow statement.

Lease incentives (e.g. rentfree period) will be recognised ds part of the measurement of the right-of-use
assets.and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the recognitiorny of a lease liability
incentive, amortised as a réduction of rental’expenses on a ‘straight-line basis.

‘Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets will be tested for tmpasrment in-accordance with IAS 36 Inpairment of

Assets, This will replace the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease tontracts.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of iow-value assets. (such as personal
computers and office furnltura), the. Company -will opt to recognise a lease expense on a stratght-line
basls ds permitted by IFRS 16,

Finance léases

The mairi differences between IFRS. 16 and IAS 17 with respect to assets formerly held under & finance
ledse is the measurement of the residual valué guarantees provided by the lessea to the lessar, IFRS 16
requires that the Company recognises as part of its. legse: liabitity only the amount expetted ta be payable
under a residual value guarantee,. rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as required by IAS 17,
On’ initial application the Compary will présent equipment previously included in property, . plant and

equipment within the line item for right-of-use assets and the leass liability, previously presented within

hotrowing, will be presented In .2 separate line for lease liabilities,

Impact on Lessor Accounting:

Under IFRS 16, a lessor continues to classify leasés as . either finance leases or operating leases and
account for those two types of leases dlfferently However, IFRS. 16 has changed and expanded the
-disclosures reguired, in particular regarding how a lessor manages the risks arising from its residual
intérest in leased assets.
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leéases (continued)

Impact gn_Lessor Accounting_(continued)

Under IFRS 16, an intermediate lessor accounts for the head lease ‘and the subléase as two separate
contracts, The intermediate iessor is required to: Classify: the sublease as & finance or operating lease by

reference to. the right-of-use asset- arising from the héad lease (and not by reference to the underlying
‘asset as-was the.case under IAS 17).

Because of this- ‘change the.Company will reclassify certain of its subledse agreements as finance léases.
As requtred by IFRS 2, an allowance for expected crednt losses will be recognised on:the finance lease
recéivables. The feased assets will be derecognised and finance lease asset receivables recognised. This

change in accounting will chahgde the fiming of recognition of thé related revenue (recognised in finance
income).

‘Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments ta IFRS 9 clarify that for the purpose. of assessing whether & prepayment feature meefs
the spp1 conchtlon the pariy exercising the option may pay or receive reasonatile compensation for the
prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepgyment. In gther words, prepayment features with
negative compensation do not automatlcally fail SPPL.

The amendment - applies to annual petiods beginning on.or after ¥ Janvary 2019; with earlier application

‘perrhitted. There are- spec:fic transition provisions depending on when the amendments -are first applied,

refative to the initial application. 6f IFRS 9,

The directers of the Company do riot anticipate that the application of the amendmaents.in the fuiture will
have an impact on the Company’s financial statements,
Amendments to IAS 19 Eniployee Benefits Plin Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that the past service cost {or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated: by

measuring the defined benefit lidbility {asset] using updated assurmnptions.and cornparing berefits offered

and plan .assets befare and after the plan amendment {or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the
effect of thie asset ceiling (that may arise whan the defined bensfit plan is’in & sbrplus pasition). IAS. 19 is
now clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may resulf from the plan amendment (or
curtailment or setifement is determined in.a second step. and is recognised in the normal manner in other
comprehensive income:

The-paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the net defined
benefit Kability (asset) have alse been amended. An entity will now be required to use the updated

‘assumptions from this remeasurement to determine current service cost and net interest for the

rermainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case- of the net interest, the

‘amendments: make it clear that for the period post plan amendment, the nat interest is calculated by

mulnpiylng the net defined benefit liability {asset) as remeasured under IAS 19.99. with the discount rate
used in the remeasurement (a[sa taking into account. the, effect of contributions and benefit payments. on
the net déefined benefit Hability {asset)).

The armnendments -are -applied prospectwefy They apply only to plan amendmeénts, curtailments. or
settlements that occur on or after the begmmng of the annual period in which the amendments to TAS 19
are first appliad.

The amendments £o 1AS 19 must be applied to annual pericds beginning on or-after 1 January 2019, but
they can be applied earlier if an entity"élects té do so. The directars of the Company do not antlapate
that the: application of ‘the amendments. in thé future will have an impact on the Company’s financal
statements
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and revised Standards in issue hut not yet effective {(continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Annual Trpravements include amendments to four Standards.

IFRIC 23 sets out 'hqw. to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatrients. The Interpretation requires an entity to:

» determine whether uncertain tax: positions are assessed separately or as a Company; and

+ assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatinent used, or
proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings:.

~ If yes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with the tax treatmernit used
or planned to bé used inits income tax-filings.

— If no, the entity should. reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining its accounting tay position. The
Interpretation:is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, Entities can apply the
Interpretation with either full retrospective application or modified retrospective application without
restatement of comparatives retrospectively or prospectively.

The directers. of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the ameéridmients in the future will
have an impact on the Company’s financial statements,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pnncmal accounting policies- adopted In the preparation of these financial staterents are set ot
below These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated,

{a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intérnational Financial Reporting

‘Standards.

{b) Basis of preparation

The finandlal statements have heen prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments

that are measured st fair values at the.ehd of each reporting period, as- explained in the-accounting

pelicies below,

Historical cost is generally based én the fair valug of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer-a lizbility in an ‘orderly

transaction between market partlt:ipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or-estimated using ancther valuation-. technique. in estimating the fair valug of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes intc account the characteristics' of the asset or lizbility if market
participants would take these characteristics inte: account when priciig the .asset. or fiability at the
measurement date.- Fair vaiue for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statemeants
is determined on-such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and.meastrements that have some

simifarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as nat real(sable value in TAS 2 or value iin use in 1AS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,. fair value measurements are- categorised inte Level 1, 2 or 3
based. ort the degree to which the inputs. to the fair value measurements are gbservable afid the

significance of the inputs to the fair valuie maasurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are guoted prices’ (Unadjusted) in active, markets for identical assets or liabtlities that:
the-entity can access at'the measurement date;
[ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than-quoted prices included within Level 1, that are obser\rable for

the-asset or [fability, elther directly or indirectly; and

® Level 3.inputs. aré unobservable inputs. for the asset or liahility.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{c) Revenue recognition

Company’s révenie afises from billing custorers for month[y ‘subscriptioh, airtime usage, connections,
recannection fees and sale of simcards, handsets and accessories.and interconnection revénue,

Revenue is: measured at the fair value of the considération received or receivable for the sale/provision of goods
-and. services in ‘the ordinary course of the company’s activities. Revenue is shewn net of value-added-tax (VAT),
excise duties, discount.and rebates.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of . control of promised products or services to the customer at the
consideration’ which the Campany has received of expects to receive in exchange of those praducts or services, net
of any taxes / dUtIES -discounts and process waivars. In order to determine-if-it is acting as a principal or as an
agent, the Company- assesses whether jtis primarily responsible for fulfilling the performance cbllgatmn

Service reverives include arncunts invoiced for usage charges, fixed monthly subscription charges and very small
aperture terminal (VSAT Yintérnet usage charges, bandwidth seivicés, -roaming charges, activation fees,
processing fees and fees for value added services ("VAS'). Service revenues also include revenues associated with
-decess.and interconnection for usage of the telephone network of other operators for local, domestlc long dlstance_
-and international calls gnd data messaging services..

‘Service révenues are recognised . as the services are rendered and are stated net of discounts, walvers and taxes.
Revenugs from pre-paid cards are recognised based on actual usage: Subscnptmn charges is- belng recognised
-over the estimated customer relationship- neriod or subscription pack validity period, whichever is lower, Activation
revenue and related activation costs, is racognized upfront.

Service reveniues from the internet and VSAT business comprisé revenues frofn registration, instsliztion and
provision of internat and VSAT services. Registration fee and installation. charges is recogriized upfront. Sefvice
revenue ig recognised from the date of satisfactory.installation of equipment and software at the customer site and
prowsnomng of internet and VSAT services.

Manthly : subscnpt_lon fees .are-recognised on a cash cap methed and Value Added Sérvices are récognised net of
‘taxes and other statutory obligations.

Revenues fram naticnal and international fong distance operations. comprise revenue. from voice services which are
recognised on. provision of servides while reveride fromi bandwidth services (including instzllation} is recognised
over the perlod of arrangement.

Defarred revenus: mcludes amount received in advance from custemers which would be recognised. over the
‘periods when the.related services are expected-to be rendered.

Equipment sales consist primarily of revenues fromsale of ‘telecornmiunication equipment and related accessories
to customers. Revenue from equipment sales- transactlons are recognised whéh the significant risks and rewards of
ownership aré trapsferred to the buyer and ‘when no significant uncertainty exists regarding realisation of
consideration.

{(d) Segment Reporting

A business segment is @ Company of assets and operations engaged in providing praducts of services that are
subject to risks.and. ieturns that areé différent from those of other business segments: A geographical segrﬂent is
éngaged in providing products or-services within.a pasticular aconamic envirohmient that are. subject to risks and
returns that are differant from-those of. segments operating in other.economic environments.

(e) Foreign currencids

Tha financial statements are presented in Zambian Kwacha,. being the currency of- the primary ecanoniic
environment in which the company dperates (the fuhttional currency). Transactions in foreign currencies are
‘converted inte Zambia Kwacha using the- exchange rates prevailing: at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and [abilities denominated in forefan. eurrencles at the reporting date are retransiated at the
forejgn exchange rate ruling at that date. Exchange gdins. and losses resulting from the settlement of forefgn
currency transactions and from the translation at the. closing date exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated-in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and ilabllltues denominated
in foreign currencies, which are stated at-historical cost, are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
-date of the transaction.

‘Foreign exchange gaing and losses that rélate fo borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are: presented i the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as net exchange (losses) / gams
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CAIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the yedrended 31 Decérhber 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f}  Property, plant and equipment

Al categories-of property, plant and equipment aFe initially recorded at cost. All property, plant and equipment is
subsequently measured at historical cast less accumulated deépreciation and impainnent 1oss. Historjcal cost
includes expenditure that is d:rectly attributable to the acquisition ‘of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amourit or recognised as'a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will: flow to the company-and the
cost of the tem can be measured reliably. Such cost includés the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and-borrowing costs for long term canstruction projects if the recognhition ériteria are et, All dther repairs-and
mairitenance are charged to proﬁt or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Impatrment losses.on property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss during the period. Reversals of
impairment losses are recegnized in profit or Joss during. the period. In addition, impairment lossey on revalued
assets are recognized in other comprehensive income during the peried.

‘When funds. borrowed are- speaﬁcaliy for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the entity determines the
amount of thé borrowing cosis eligible for capntairzatlon as the actual borrowmg costs incurred on that borrowing
during the periad lass any investimiett incéme on the termnporary investment of the borrowings. -

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment that is disposed off is derecognized when the criteria for
sale of goods in IAS 18 is met.

When sigriificant parts of property and equipment are réquired to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognizes
such parts-as separate components of assets with specific useful lives and provides ‘depreciation over their useful
lives. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised, All other repair and. maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss. as incurred.

Assets:are depreciated to the residual values on g straight-line basis over the: estimated useful lives. The assets'
residual values and usefil Jives are reviewed at each financial year: end-or whenever there are indicators for
mpairment;, and adjusted prospectively. Land is.not deprecsated

Categories Years
Leasehold buildings 20
Network eguipment 3-20
Computer equipment 3
Office furpiture and equipment 2-5
Customer premises eguipment 5-6

Gains -and losses arising fram retirement or disposal of property, plant and eguipivient are determined as the
différence between the net disposa) praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement and disposal.

(g) Leases

Leases in which' a significant portion of the risks and rewards. of ownership are retained by tHe. lessor are classified
as operating leases, Paymeants made under operating leases are charged te profit or'fass on- a straight=line basis
-over the period of the |gase. For lessors lease income fram operating leases is recognised in income.an a straight
line basis over the lease term, lnless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished,

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company has substantially retained all risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance Ieases. Finance ledses are capitalised by the  lgssee at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of fair value of the leased preperty and present value. of minimum lease payments.
The Leséor recognises assets held under & finance lease in their statements of: financial position :and present them
as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the Jease.

For:a finance lease interést and depreciation is charged as expense in the periods’in whi_ch't_hey'a_re incurred.

th) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost'and net realisable. value Cost is determined by the weighted average
_cost methad, 2nd inciudes all expenditure incurred’in bringing the |nvent0r|es ‘o their present value ard condition,

but excludes borrewing. Costs. -Met realisable valug is the-estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated selling expenses,

The amount of any write down of invenitoriés to net realisable value and all losses of inventories Is recoghised as
an expense in the period the write down or loss aceurs,
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the vear énded 31 December 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED})

(I} 'Receivables

Reteivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. A provision for impairment of receivables is. established when there is objective- evidence that the
company will not be able to collect all the amounts: due siccording to the original termis of receivables. The-amourit
of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and 'the present valie of expected cash flows,
discounted at the effective financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment. loss is recognisad in
profit or-loss,

{3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cagh and cash -equivalent includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
frvestments with ariginal maturities of three months. or léss, and bank overdrafts measured at amortised costs,

Barnk overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an intearal part of the Cortipany’s cash management are
included as” .a compenent &f cash and cash-equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows,

{k) Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed as per TAS-7"Statement of cash flows”, whereby profit for'the
period is adjusted for the effect of fransactions of a non-cash rigture, any deferral or acerual of past or future cash
operating receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or finandng cash flows,
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

{1 Borrowings

Bor.row?n_gs are recognised {nitially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subseguently
measured at amortised cost ysing the effective interest method;

‘When calculating the efféctive interest rate) thie entity. estimates the cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider futiure credit losses.

An.y_differences-.be;w_e_en proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit ar
loss.over the pariod of the borrowings using the effective interest rate.

Borrowings are ciassffieq__as current lfabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlernent of
“the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(m) Financialinstruments

Financial assets and_ﬁnanciai fiabilities aie recognised in the Company's staternent of financial -pqsition when the
Company becames a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumerit.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are: initially measured. at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial ifabifities at fair vaiue through profit or loss) are added Lo or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assels or financial labilities, as appropriate, on iritial recognition. Transaction costs diractly attributa_b_[e to the

acquisition of finandial assets or financial liabilities at fair value thiough piofit'or loss are recoghised immediately in
_prafit or loss.
Financial assets

All regular way purchases .or sales of fihancial assets are recognised and derecognised oh & trade date basis.
Reguiar way purchases or sales are purchases or sales-of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
‘time frame-established by regulation or conventidn in the marketplace,

All recognised financial asséts are measured stibsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
‘dedending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financiat:assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measurad subsequently at amortised cost:

¢ the financial assét s held within a business model whose objective.is to hold financiaj assets in order to.
collect contractual cash flows; and
.- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of prinéipal and ih‘tere_st-on the priricipal amount outstanding.
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMEIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'(CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets fcontinued)

Classification of financial assets (conbinbied)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value, through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCT):

. the financial asset % held within a business model whase objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

o thé. contractial teems. of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all.other financial assets are measured subsequentiy-at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing; the Comipany may make the following irrevocable eléct_i_qn/_designation at initial récognition
of a financial asset:

° the Company may jfrevocably elect fo present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
ather comprehiensive income if-¢értain-criteria are met;-and
s the Company may irtevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI

kriteria as measuréd at FVTPL if doing so.éliminates or Sigrificantly reduces an accounting mismatch..
(i} Armartised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of 3 debt instrument and of allocating
“interest income: over the relevant:period,

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired finandial assets. (i.e. assets that are
credit-impaired on nitial recognition), the effective Interest rate is the rdte that exactly discounts estimated future
.cash receipts (including 3l fees and points paid or received that form -an integral part of the effective intarest rate,
‘transaction costs and other premiuvms or discounts) -excluding expected credit losses, through the expected e of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a-shorter perod, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on .initial Fecagnition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjustad effective
interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated. future ‘cash fows, including expected credit losses, to the

amortised cast of the debt instrument on initial recognition:

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the-amount at which the financial asset is.measured at initial recégnition
minus the principal répayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest methad of any
difference between that injtial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss -allowance. The gross
‘carring amount of & financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequenitly at
-amortised cost and at FVTOCE. For financial assets, other that purchased or originated creditimpaired financiaf
assets, interest incomne is calculated by applying the. effective ‘interest rate to the gross carrying amount. of &
financial asset, &xcept for financial assats that have subsaquently become credit-impaired (see below). For-financial
assets that have subsequently becoms credit-impaired, interest: income. is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impajred financial instrurnent improves so that the financial asset is no longer- eredit-impaired, Iriterest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate ‘to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Company recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

The calculation does. not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the finandal asset subsequently
improves.so- that, the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, Interest income is recognised in. profit or loss.
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZEMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the vear ended 31 December 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (_CONTINUED_]

(m) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and fosses

The carrying amount-of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
cutrency and translated at the spot.rate at'the end of each reporting périod. ‘Specifically;

° for financial. assefs.measured at amortised cost that are pot part of a designated hedging . relationship,
exchapge differences are recognised in profit orloss: o _
e for debt instruments measured at FYTOCT that are rit part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange

differences-on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are racognised in profit or loss. Other:exchange
différences are recognised in other comprehensive income In the investments revaluation raserve;

¢ for financial assets measured at F\_!‘I_‘F‘L that are niot part of a designated hedging relationship, éxchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss; and

s for equity -instruments Measured. at FVTOCI, eéxchange différences are recognised in othar comprehensive
income in the investments revaluation reserve.

Ampairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expécted tredit losses on investments in debt instruments- that are
measured ‘at amortised cost ar at FVTGCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as well as on
financial guarantee .contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each. refjorting date to reflact
changes in credit risk since initfal recognition -of the respective financial instrument..

The Company always receghises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease recéivables. The
expected credit losse's on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s
historical ‘credit loss experience, adjusted for factors: that are specific to the debtors, general :economic . conditions.
and an as:sessm_en't of both the current as well as the farecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including timé value of monéy where appropriate.

‘For _all other financial instruments; the Cempany fecognises fifetime ECL. when there has been.a slignificant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, However, if the credit risk on the financial instrumerit has not increased
significantly sincé initial recognition, the Company measures the less allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to'12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the éxpected credit losses that will result from. all possibie default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12.month ECL represents the portion’ of lifetime ECL that is
‘expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are ‘possible within 12 months ‘after the
reporting date.

(i) Significant increase In credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instruinent has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company compares the risk.of a default eccurring on the financial ihstrument at the repoiting date with the
risk of & default 6ecurring on the financial instrument at the date of initlal recognition. Tn making this agsessment,
‘the Compary considers both quantitative and qualitative'inforiiation that is redsénable and supportable; including
historical experience and farward-looking information that is available without undue cost-or effort. Forward-fooking
information conisidered includes ‘the future -prospects ‘of the industries in which the Company’s debtors cperate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant thinkfanks and other
simifar -organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of .actual and forecast econamic
information that relate 1o the Company's ¢ofe operations, '

In- particular, the following information, is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
:significantly since initial recagnition:

v an actual or expected significant. deterioration in the financial instrumerit's external {if available} or internal
credit rating;

% sign_ific_a_nt detericration In external rarket indicators of credit risk for a particular financial ihst_rument,_ g,
a significant increasa in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices. for the debtor, or the lengih of
fime or the extent to which the fair value of a financial assst has been less thar its amortised cost;
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 Décember 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{m) Financiat instruments {continued)
Financial assets (continued}
{f Significant Increase in credit risk (continued)

® existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in‘the debtor's ability to maet its debt obligations;
an actual or éxpected sigriificant deterioration in the aperating reésults of the debtor;”
significant increases in credit risk on'other financial instruments of the same debtor;
. an actual or expected.significant adverse change in the regulatory, ecdnomic, or techrological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's-ability te meet its debt obligation

Irrespeciive of the outcorme of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on 8 financial
asset has increased Significantly since initial recognition when centractiial payments -are more than 30 days past
due; unless the Company. has reasonabls and. supportable inforimation that demanstrates otherwise,

Despite- the- feregoing, the Company. assumes that the credit. risk on a finaricial instrument has not fncreased
significantly .since inhitial récognition if the financial instrument is.determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A'financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) Thefinancial instrument has a low risk of default,

(2} Thedebtor has a strong. capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in.the near term, arid

{3)._ Adverse changes in economic and business conditions i the longer term -may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ahility of the borrower-to fulfil its contractual cash Fow obligations.

tii}  Définition of default
The Company considers the; following as-constituting an event of defaulr for internal credit ‘risk management

‘purposes’ as -historical experience indicates that finaricial assets that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

° ‘when there is a'__-'brea:_:h of financial coveéhants by the debtor; of _

5. information':deveioped internally or obtained from: external sources indicates that the deb'tor"i's' uniikely to
pay lts creditors, including the Company, in full {without taking into account any collateral held by the
Campany

irrespe__ctive of the above analysis, the Company. considers that default has cccurred when a financial asset is more

than 90. days past due upjess the Corhpany- has reasonable and supportable informa’ti'c_m to demonstrate that a

‘more lagging default criteiion is mora appraopriate,
(ifi}  Creditdimpaired financial assets

A-financial asset is creditdmpaited when one -or more events that have & detrimental impact.on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a finandial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the Issuer or the borrower;

b} 8 breach of contract, such as a default or past dueevent; )

{c} the lender{s) of the borrower, for econemic o contractual reasons releting fo the borrower's finandial
difficulty, having granted to tie horravrer a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise. consider;

(d) it.l¢ becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
fe) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because.of finapcial difficulties.

fiv]  Wirite-off policy

The Company writes ‘off @ financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there ig no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has- entered -inte bankruptey proceedings, dr in the case of trade receivables, when the trade receivables. has
crossed the faw of limitation peried past dié, whichever occurs sconer. Financial assets written off may still be
subjéct to enfofcement activities Under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries.made are recognised in profit or loss..
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the vear ended 31 December 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m} Finaricial instruments {continued)
Financial assets (continued)
(v}  Measurement and recognition-of expected credit fosses

The ‘measurement of expected cradit losses is a- functton of the probability. of default, loss {given default’ (l e. the
magnitide of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
‘default and loss given'default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-lopking informiation as described
above.

As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the’ assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting «date; for financial guarantee contracts,. the-exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, ‘together with any additicnal amounts expected to be. drawn down in the future by defaulf date
‘determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific-future finanding heeds of the
‘debtors, and other ralevant forward- looking informatiorn.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference bétween all contractusl cash flows that
are due to the Company in accordance with the contract-and all the cash flows that the Company. expects to
'recewe, discounted at the original effective Interest rate.

The. Campany. recognises an imipairment. gain or loss in profit or joss for all financial ‘instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss aflowance account.

Derecogm‘t’fon of financial assets

The Comipany derecogriises a financial asset only when the .contractual rights to the cash flows fram the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantlaliy all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. IF the Campany neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks. and rewards of ownership
and continues to cohtrol the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability fcr amounts it may have to pay. If the Company reétains substantially all the risks and rewiards
of ownership of a transferred financiai asset, the Company continues to recognise the financiat asset and also
recognises a collaterslised borrawing. for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amotfised cost, the difference hetwaen the assets carrymg
amount.and the sumi of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, .on
derecogmtlon of an investment in & debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain-or ioss previcusly
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to. profit or loss., In contrast, or derecognition of
an investment in aquity. instrument which the Company has elected én initial Fecognition to measute at RTOCT,
the cumulative gain or loss breviousty accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not rectassified to
profit-or loss; but i5 transferred to retained earnmgs

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as-debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as. equity in accordance with the
stibstance of the contractual arfangements and the definitions of a financial Iiabtllty and an. equity instrument,
Equity instrumants

An equity instrument is any coritract that evidences a residual interest in the assets. of an entlty after deducting ait
of its I;abliltxes Equity- instruments isstied by the Company are recognised at. the proceeds received, net of direct
issue casts,

Repurchase-of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
i$ recognised in. profit or loss on the purchase sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost-using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

‘the effective interest method is a method of calculatlng the amortised cost of a financial !|abi!rty and of alfocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estirhated
future cash- payments -(including. all fees and pomts paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other gremiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
‘or (where. appropriate) a shorter perigd; to the amortised cost of a financial liahility.
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMEBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m} Financial instruments (continued)
Financial Habilities {continued):

Foreign exchange gains and fosses

For financial liabifities that are derieminated in a foréign  currency: and are.measured at amortiséd cost at the end.of
each reporting period, the fareigh exchange gains and losses are determined hased on the amortised cost of the
instruménts. These foreign exchange gains and losses aré recognised i the "other gains and |osses’ line item in
profit or loss. ' ' '

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in-a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency. arid
translated at the spot rate at the :end of the reporting peried. -

Derecognition of financial labilities

‘The Company derecognises financiat Jiabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired: The-difference betwaen the carrying améunt. of thé financial liability derecognised and
‘thie consideration paid and payable is reécognised in profit or foss,

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks;
Including foreign.exchange forward contracts.

Derivatives are recognised initially -at fair value at the date a derivative contract i§ entered into -and ‘are
‘subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resuiting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss,

A d_eri__vative with a pesitive fair valug is recognised as a financial -asset whereds a dérivative with a negative fair
value'is recognised as a financial liability. Derivativas ate hot offset in the financial statements unless the Company
has both |ggal right and intention ta offset,

1Hedge3accciuntir_19'

The Company designates cértain derivativés as hedging instfumerits in respect of forsign ‘currency risk and ifterest
ra'te_ risk. in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations, Hedges of
fareign exchange risk on firm commitments are accourited for as cash flow. hedges.,

At the inception of the: hedge relationship, the Company decuments the relationship between the hedgirg
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its: strategy - for undertaking
various hedge transactions: Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge.and on ah ongoing basis, the Company
documents whether the. hedging instrument is ‘effective in offsetting changes In fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk,

Fair value hedges

The fair value change on qualifying hedding, instrurnents is recognised in profit or loss except when the -hedging
instrument hedges. an equity instrument designated at FVTOCI in which casé it is recognised in other
comprehensive income,

The carrying amount of a hedged item not already’ measured -at: fair valie is adjusted for the fair value change
attribtrtable to the hedged risk with & correspending entry in_profit or loss, For debt instruments measured at
FVTQCI, the carrying afmount is not adjusted as it is already. at falr value, but the hedging gainv or loss is
recognised in profit or foss Instead of other comprehensive income: When. the hedged item is an equity instrument
designated at FYTOEGI, the hedging gain -or loss remains in other tomprehensive income to match that of the
hedging instrument. :

Where hedging gains or losses -ara-recogni'sed__.i_n profit:or loss, they are recognised in the same line as the hedged
itemn. '

The-Company discontinuas hedge accoiinting only when thehedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet
-the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicablg). This includes instances when the hedging instrument
expires or is scld, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation fs sccounted for prospectively: The fair value
‘adjustment te. the -carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised ta profit or loss
from that date.. ' '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{m) Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)
Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of chafiges in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that are.
designated and qualify-as-cash fiow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated .under
the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited to the cumufative change.in fair value of the hedged item from
inception of the hedye. The gain or loss relating to- the Ineffective portion is recognised immedistely in profit or
toss, and is'inclided in the ‘sther.gains and losses’ fine itemn:

-Amounts previously recognised in.other comprehensive incomie-and accumulated in equity are redassified to profit
-ar loss in the-periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in. the same line as the recodnised hedged item.
Hewever; when the hedged forecast trafisacticn results in the recognifion of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehénsive incormie. and accurmulated in equity are
removed from equity and included ih the initiat measurement of the tost.of the noh-finantial asset or non-financial
lfability. This transfer do&s not affect other comprehérisive income. Furthermore, if the Company expects that
some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be: recovered in the future, that

amount is immediately reclassified to profit or lass..-

The Comipariy discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meat
the qualifying critéria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument
-expires or is sold,. terminated or ‘exercised. The -discontinuation is accounted for prospectivély. Any gain or liss
recognised In -other comprehensive incame and accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains in
‘equity and is reclassified to profit or loss' when the forecast transaction oécurs. When & forecast transaction is no
longer expected to eceur, the-gain or loss accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified immediately to
profit or loss.

(n}  Share capital and Share premium
Issped ordinary shares are.classified as ‘share capital’ in equity when the Company has an un-corditional right to
avoid delivery of cash or.another financial assel, that is, when the dividend and repaymient of capital are at the

sole and absolute discretion of the Company and there is no-contractual obligation whatsoever: ta that effect. Any
premium received over and above the par vaille of the shares is classified as ‘sharé premium’in eguity,

{0) Payables
_'PayahleS are. recognised initially st fair value and s'ubsequentl"_\,r_ measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
(P} Employee benefits
1. Retiremant benefit obligations,

The company operates a defined contribution scheme for all its employees. The tompany and all its. employees
also contribute to the National Pension Scheime Fund, which .is a defined contribution scheme. A defined
contribution plan is a retirement benefit pian under which the company pays fixed contributions into a separate
efitity. The:campany has no legat or constructive obligations to pay-further contributions if the fund does not hold
stifficient assets to pay all émployess the benefits relating to employee-service in the cuire nk and prior pericds.

The contributions to the defined coritribution scheines are recoghised in profit or loss in the year in which they fall.

2. Dther entitlements

The estimated 'Iiab_iiity_ for employeds’ accrued gratuity and annwal.lesve -'entilileme_nt at the reporfing date ‘is
recognised as an expeansa dccrual.

{a) Income tax
Income: tax expense camprises cuirent and deferred taX. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or

ioss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised dire_c'tly'in equity or-other comprehensive income, in
which casé it is recognised directly in-equity or other comprehansive income;

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the takable income or-loss for the year, using tax rates

.enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to-tax payable in respect of previous
vears.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _(CONTI_NUED)

{(g) Income tax:(continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carry_ing amounts of assets and
lizbilities for financial reporting purposas and the.amounts used for taxation purposeés; Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an agset or liability in-a transaction that is not & business combination and, at the time of
the tranisaction, affects neither the accou_nti__hg profit nor taxable profit or loss; In-respect of taxable _'témporary
differences associgted with-investments in subsidiaries, assaciates and interests in joint ventures, when thé timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled-and it is ‘probable that the temporary differences will
-not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that'are expected to be applied to
-the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the taws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets and they felaté to intome taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity,

A deférred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax-credits and deductible temporary differences to. the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against-which they can be utilised, except:

when the defefred tax asset: relating to the deductible ternporary difference arises from the initial receguition of an
asset or liability 'in a transaction that is not’ a business combinatioh and; at the time of the transaction, affecks
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or foss

In respect of'dedu_cti_b[e temporary différences associated with investments in subsidiaries; associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable futiire and taxable profit will be aveilable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised '

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit wili be reafised.

{r) Intangible assets

The Company’s intangible dsset comprise of licenses and indefeasible right of use _('IRU). Licenses & IRU are
recogaised as an-asset when it is probable that future-economic benéfits from the asset will flow to the entity and

the cost of the license can be reliably ineasured.

Licenses -are initially measured at cost and. subsequeitfy amortised on a straight-line basis. gver their usefu! lives.,
Intangible assets-are measured at.cost less accumuiatad amdr.t’is__ation and impairment. losses, ‘Amortisation: periods’
arg reviewed anrnually and ‘adjusted prospectively as required. Gains or losses arising from “derécognition of
licenses are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised. in profit or loss when the: assét is-.dérecognised. Licenses are amortised over a period of 15
years .

Indefeasible intarigible assets are recaghised when t:he. ‘Company controls the assets, it is probable that.fiture
economic benefits: from the asset will flow to the entity and thé cost of the assat can be reliably measured.

At initial récognition, the separately acquired i'ntangibl_e assets are recognised at cost. Following inftial recogniticn,-
the intangible assets are carried at cost-less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment: losses, if
é_h‘y; ‘Gains or losses arising from derecognition of thg’a- assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposai proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in. profit or ioss ‘when the asset is
derecognised, Tndefeasible right of use {IRU} are amortised cvar a pericd of 16 to 15 years .

(s} Impairment of non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment (PPE} and Intangible assets
PPE and intangible assets. witfi definite lives are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in

circuimstances indicate that their carrying values may not be recoverable, For the putpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable ampunt (that'is, higher-of the fair vafue less costs to sell and the value-in-use) is. determined on
an individual asset basis, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are: largely independent.ﬂf thdse from
othef ‘assets, in which case the recoverable amouht is determined at the cash-generating-unit (CGU’J level to
which the said asset belongs. If such individual assets or CGU are considerad to be impaired,. the impairment to be
recegnised in the statement of grofit and loss s measured by the amount by which the carrying valhe_c’zf_t'he asset
/ CGU exceeds their estimated. recoverable-amount and aliocated 6n pro rata basis. Impairment losses, if any, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss. ' '

29




AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s} Impairment of non-financial assets. (continued)

Reversal of impairment losses

Impairment losses are réversed and the carrying value is increased to its revised recoverablé.am'oun_t.proyi_ﬁed
that this ameunt does not exceed the carrying. value that would have been ‘determined had no isppairment loss
been recognised for the said asset in previgus years.

(t) Dividends

Dividends payable to the company’s shareholders are charged to equity in the period in which they are
declared.

{u) Provisions

Pravisioris are recognised when the Company has a present '.obligafipn (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it Is probable that the Company will be fequired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recogniséd as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settfe the present
iobligation at the. 'end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks.and uncertainties surrounding the
abligation. When a provision is. measurad usiny the cash flows estimated to settle the present-obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is
material}.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to-settle'a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement wiil be received
and the.amaount of the receivable can.be measured reliably..

v} Contingenties

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when ‘there is a possible obligation or a present-obligation that

may, but probably wifl not, requiire an outfiow of resources. When there is-a possible obligation or & present

obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote,. no provision or-disclosure is
made. Contingent assets are not recognised and disclosed only: where an inflow of ecenomic benéfits is
probable,

{w) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures. have been -adjusted to confarim with changes ini presentation in the
current year, '

(x) Earning per share (EPS)

The Company presents the Basic and Diluted EPS. data. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit for the
pericd attributable to ‘the shareholders of the Company by the weighted aveérage number of shares
outstanding ‘during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by -adjusting, the profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders and the weighted average riumber of shares considered for deriving Basic EPS, for the effécts of
all the shares that could have been issued Upon -conversion of all difutive potential shares. The -dilutive

p_o't'eritia} shares dre adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value:
Further, the diliitive potential shares are deemed converted as at begipning of the period, unless issued at a
later date during the peried.

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 3UDGEMENTS

Estim_at_es-and judgments-are continually -evaluated and are based on histerical ‘experience and other factors,
incjuding experience of future events that are believed to be reasonable undar the circumstances,

(i) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The company. makes. estimates and assumptiohs concerring the future. The resulting accounting estimates
wili, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assomptions that have a
significant risk .of causing a material adjustrent to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities’ within the
next financial yedr are addressed below.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{i} Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (contihueﬂ‘d)
Receivables:
Critical gstimates are made by ghe-directors. in-determining the recoverable -amount of impaired receivables.

Factors taken into consideration in making such judgments Include historical trends and the number of days.a
debt is past'its due date for payment. The carrying amount of impaired receivables is set out in Note 19,

Taxes
1. Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authoritigs in accordante with
the Income Tax -Act. The tax ratés and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

2. Deferred tax

Defefred income taxes reflects the impack -of current’ year timing differerices between taxabhle ificome and
dgccolntng income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Defarréd tax is measired
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

-Determination of residual values-and useful lives

Judgment and estimations are used when determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant
and. equiprment on annual basis. ' '

(it) Critical judgmentsin applying the entity’s accounting policies

In- the process of applving the company’s -accounting pn[ic__ies, management has made judgmernts in
‘determining:

s 'the classification of ﬁ_nangi_ail assefs and léases,

e revenue recognition-aliocation to different components,
© determining whether assets are impaired, or not.

{a) Multiple-element contracts with vendors

The .Company has entered inty multipte element contracts for supply of goods and rendering of services. In
certain cases, the consideration paid is determined indépendent of the value of supplies received and services
availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are accounted for -based an their relative fair values to the
overall consideration. The supplies with finite life under the contracts have been accounted under Property;.
Plant and Equipment and / or as Intangible assets, since the Company has .economic ownership. in these
-assets and represents the substance of the @rrangeiment, ' '

(b): Arrangeément containing lease

The Company assesses the contracts entered with telecom operators / passive infrastructure services
Providers to share tower infrastructure services so as to détermine whether these egntracts that deo not take
the legal form of a lease convey a right to use an asset or not. The Company has determiined, based on an:
evaluation of the termis and canditions of the arrangements that such contracks -are in the nature of leases.
Most of these leases are classified as operating unless the'term of the agreement is for the major-part of the.
estimated. economic life of the leased asset, which is accounted for as finance lease. '

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's. activities expose-it td:a variety of financial risks: Market risk {including Foreign exchange risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and- price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
company’s overall risk management pregramme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks.
to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial perfarmance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance department urider policies approved by the Board of
Directors,
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJIECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk

The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from varicus currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future - commercial transactions, and recognised assets and
liabilities. '

Currency "exposure arising from liabifities denominated in foreign currencies is maraged primarily through the
holding of bank balances in the televasit fordign curcencies and hedging through foreign currency forward contract.
Policy is consistent with previous period.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the trade receivables, payables and.borrowings arid

the proportion of fihanicial instruments:in foreign currencies are all constant.

The assumption in calculation of the sensitivity analysis is that: the sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or
loss is.the effect of the @ssumed changes in the: réspective market risk, the sensitivity of equity is calcufated by
considering the effects of the assumed changes of the underlying risks.

At 31 Decernber 2018, if the Kwacha had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the US dollar with all other
variables held constant, post tax profit forthe period would have been K35.246 million (2017: K1€.830 million)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of US dollar denominated trade receivables, payables and borrowings. There would
be no impact on equity.
.Exposure to currency risk

The.company’s éxposure o foreidn currency risk was as follows:

Exposure to currency risk

2018 2017
‘Cash & tash equivalents (nat) {nate 21) 281 (25 200)
Trade and other receivables (note 19) 93 834 58 986
Trade.and other payables (note 22) {83.445) (40 40%)
Short term borrowings (note 24) (715608) (209 97%9)

(704 929) (216 598)

The following US Dotlar exchange rates applied durifig the period:

Average Rate 10.464 9.533
Closing Rate 11.927 9,999

(i) Price risk
The company does not held any ﬁn_ancial-}nst_rume_n'ts. subject to price risk.
(iliy Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The company’s interest bearing financial fliabilities were thg overdraft of K32.449 million (2017: K21.657 millicn)
-and the borrowing of K715.608 miltion at year end (2017: K209.979 million) which was at fixed rates for an
agreed period {subject t5 the sionificant change in-market condition} and on which it was therefore not exposad to
cash flow interest-rate -risk. The Company regularly monitors financing options available to ensure optimum interest
rates are obtained. At 31 December 2018, if €ffective interest rates.on barrowings had baen 2% higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, pre tax profit would have been K14.961 million (2017: K 4.633 miflign)
lower/higher,

Credit _rfsk_

Credit risk is the risk that a customer. or tounterparty to a finandial instrument will fail to perform or faf! to pay
amounts dueé causing findncial loss ta the company. and arises from cash equivalerts and depodits with fifancial
institutions -and principally from credit exposures.to customers relating to outstanding receivables. For banks and
financial institutions, only reputable institutions are used. '

The company is not significantly exposed to credit risk on the retail side since the majority of its customers are on’
the prepaid plan and "majorif:y of the distributors /dealers are. primarily or cash basis, or theircredit is coveréd by a
bank guarantes.

The interconnection between the company and other talecommunications operators {(both local and forgign) is on

credit basis and the number of credit days is governed by the agreement between the. parties. The utilisation of
credit limits is reqularly monitored,
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Credit risk (continued)

The amount that best represents the company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 Decémber 2018 is made
vp as follows:

‘Note 2018 2017
‘Cash and cash equivalents 24 32 258 2 591
Trade receivables {riat) 19 62 818 &6 064
95 076 68 655,
Impairment losses
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:
2018 2018 2017 2017
K'ooo K000 K'0no- K000
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired.
amount amoaunt
30 days 45502 - 44 716 -
60 days 15720 - 21 544 -
90.days and abgve- i11 664 110 068 107 118 107 314
172 886 110 068 173378 107 314

Collsteral is held for some-of the above assets namely distributors with bank.guarantees of K9.65 million, K1.114
million post-paid deposits’and K4.461 million channel parther deposils as-at 31 Pecember 2018 (2017; Ki4.85
million bank guarantees and K1.044 rilfion post-paid deposifs ahd K0.764 million channel partner deposits
respectively), Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are within their approved credit limits; and
no receivables have had. their terms renegatiated, '

Mone of the :above assets are either past due or impaired except for the following interconnect, one fietwork,
roaming and distributor amounts in trade receivables {which are due w_i't__hin 30 days of the end of the month in
which thay are invoiced):

2018 2017
Past due bit.not impaired:
= by up.to 30 days 9 431 13 166
- by 31to 90 days 6 290 8 378
- by 91 days and over i 488 3404
Total past due but not impaired 17 209 74 947

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk-management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances, and the availability of funding

from an adequate amount of committad credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of thé underlying businass, the
finance department maintain flexibiiity in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on -contractual
undiscountad payments,

Note Less than Between 1  Between 2 Over:
1 year and 2 years and Syears 5years
K'a00 K000 K'000 K'oDo
At 31.-Décember 2018
- Trade and other payables 22 522 097 - - -
- Contract hability. 23 101 608
- Related company payables 28(v) 65372 - - -
- Bank overdrafis 21 32 449 - - -
- Borrawings' 24 715 608 - - -
At 31 December 2017
- Trade and other payables 22 531 108 - - -
- Contract fiabiity 23 101 646
- Refated company payables 29(v) 17 417 - - -
- Bank overdrafis 21 21657 - - -
- Borrowings 24 209.979 - - -
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Kwacha'000

6.

10.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to saféguard the company’s @bility to continue as &

-going concern in order to pravide returns for sharehofders ahd to'maintain‘an optimal capitaf. structure to

reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may limit the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders; jssue new shares; or sell assets to reduce debt.

The: company monitors -capital 6n the basis of the gearing ratlo; This ratio: is calculate_d as: nét debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculdted as total borrowings tess cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity plus net debt.

The. gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 21}_'.1'__7 were as follows:

2018 2017
Total borrowings (including bank overdraft and finance leasa) 1591133 1003 725
Less: cash-and cash equivalents {32 258} {2 591)
Net debt 1558875 1001134
Total'equity (11 782) 464 159
Total capital 1 547 093 1465 293.
Gearing ratio 101% 658%:

‘REVENUE

The Ehtity derive_s'i_ts_ revenue from .contracts with tustemers for the transfer of goeds and services over
time and at 4 point in time in the following ‘major prodict lines.,

Analysis of revenue by category:

Afttime reveriue. 1 248 550. ] 350 943
Data revente B30 358 521 888
interconnect revenye 21t 131 192 580
Short Messaging Services 49 006 63496
Roarning revenue 31 183 30.252
Handsets and accessories 12559 15 856
VYalue added services.contént 16 636 11 523
Cennection revenie 11 667 8125

2111060 2 195663

Maniagement expects that: amounts’ rélating ta unsatisfied contracts-as of the year eéndad 31 Decerber
2018 on Bundled Handsets will be recdgnised- as revente during the next reporting period.

OTHER OPERATING & FINANCE INCOME

Finance/interest income 793 3 740
Other operating income 2627 1754
3 420 5 494

NET EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAIN
Net exchange {loss)/gain arose on:

Borrowings and- cash and cash equivalents (122 969) (37 002}
Other balances - 18639 1 498
Finance leases {136 738} {1 8%4)

{241 063) {37398)

FINANCE COSTS

Finance lease charges 81 591 81 526
Interest expense on borrowings. 27 226 b 890,
108 817 88 416
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Kwacha'’too 2018 2017

1%,

12.

13,

'PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax Is stated after crediting:

Interest-income {note 8) 793 3 740
‘and after charging: _ o
Depreciation on propeity and eguipment (Note 16) 345780 400 533
Employee benefits expense ' 117 893 128.550
Operating lease rentals 31 098 32.038
Amartisation of intangible assets (Note'17) 10 054 5981
‘Receivables - provision for impairment [osses (noté 19) 2 754 {323)
Auditors’ réemurieration 2072 2 344
INCOME TAX

Current income tax 181410 230033
Prior year additional tax charge 546 11482
Prior year excess deferred tax liability revérsal (note 15) (6 296) (138178)
Déferred income tax (Note 15) (9 739) (12 778)
Income tax.expense 165 621 90 559

The 'ta_n__x on the company's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount  that would arise using the statutory income tax rate

as follows:

Profit-before income téix 230.480 454 537
Tax calculated at thé'statutory income tax rate of 40% ‘92 192 181 815
Tax effect of: ' . .
Origination ahd reversal of timing differences (note 15) (16 035) (150 956)
Expenses not deductible for tax plurposes {net) 89 464 59 700
Income fax expense 165 621 90 559

Income tax payable

Current income tax ravement in the statement of financial position:

At January 113 364 121274
Current income'tax.charge 181 110 230 033
Prior year additionaj tax charge 546 11.482-
Payments during the yesr {196 683} (249 425)
At end of the year 98.337 113 364

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to -apply in the year

when the asset is reafised or theliability is settled, based on the tax rates {and tax laws) that have
.been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Income tax provigional returns have been filed with the Zambia Revenue Atthority (ZRA) for the year

-ended 31 Decemnber 2018: Quarterly payments for the year ended 31 December 2018 were made on

the due dates during the periad.
EARNINGS. PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is -calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company by the weighted average number-of ordinary shares in issue _d_urin_g'th_e.perio_d_.__There were no
potentially dilutive shares. outstanding at 31 Decémber 2018 and 31 December 2017: Diluted earnings:

per share is therefdre the same-as basic earnings per share.

Profit attributableé to the equity holders. of the Company 64 859 363 978
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Nos '000) 104 000 104 oop
Basic/diluted earnings per share (Kwacha) 0.62 3,50
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Kwacha'000
14. SHARE CAPITAL Number Ordinary Share
of shares shares premium
{million} (K 000} (K 000)
At 31 Pecember 2018 ‘164 104 24 962
At 31 -December 2017 104 1 640 24962

15.

(i}

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 104 miflion. with a par value of K0.01 per share. All

issuted shares are fully paid.

DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax liability is calculated using the: enacted income tax rate of 40% (2017: 40%). The

movement on the deferred tax account is as. follows:

2018 2017
1 January _ (16 581} 134.375
Prior year excess liability reversal (i) (6 296) (138.178)
Charge to profit or loss {9 739) _ (12 778)
At 31 December {32 616} f16 581)

Deferred income tax (assets) liabilities, deferred income tak charge/(credit) in profit. or loss, and
deferred incorne tax charge/{credit) in equity are attributable to-the fdllowing items:

Charged/(cre
At1 dited} to At 31
Jdanuary profit/loss Pecember
_ K'000 K'000 K'o00
2018 '
Deferred income tax labilities _
Propérty and equipment 169 044 251 148 420 192
Unrealised exchange gains (481) 1 B55 1374
Deferred income tax assets ' _
Other teraporary deductible différences {123.231) (194 713) {317 944)
Cther provisions (56 339) 5164 (51 175)
Unrealised exchange lossas (5.574) (79 489) {85 063)
Net deferred income tax liability (asset) {16 581) (15 035) (32 616)
2017
Deferred income tax liabilities )
Propierty and equipment 165 000 4 padq 169 044
Unrealised exchange gains 132123 (138-178) (6 055)
Deferred.income tax assets
Other temporary deductible differences {108 657) {14 5743 (123.231)
Other provisions (54 091y {2 248) (56339
Net deferred income tax liability (asset) 134375 (150 956) (16 581)

In Year 2'0’.1‘8:C0mpany has comguted the deferred tax basis balance sheeat appreach, which has resuited

into the excess liability reversal of K&.296. million (2017 : 138.178 million)
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Kwacha'0co .
Internet
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Indefeasible service

rightof  Cellular provider o

use license license Total

(IRU) (1}
Cost
At 1 January 2017 - 7 372 125 7 497
Additions {i) 107 630 _ - - 107 630
At 31 December 2017 __ 167630 7372 125 115127
At 31 Dece_mber 2018 107 630 7 372 125 115 127
Amortization
At 1 January 2017 - 2 808 125 2933
Charge foi the year 5519 462 - 51981
At 31 December 2017 5518 3270 125 8914
At 1 January 2018 5 518 3270 125 8914
Charge for the year _ 9592 462 - 10 054
At 31 December 2018 15111 3732 125 . 18568
At 31 December 2018 92 519 3.640 - 96159
At 31 December 2017 102 111 4102 - 106 213

18,

19.

(i} In 2017 Company has taken international bandwidth on lndefeasmle right of us€ basis whlch Is being
armortised over a périod of 10 to 15 years:

INVENTORIES 2018 2017

Merchandise held for sale’ 23 827 25789

Less provision for-obsolete stock {23 152) (23 953)
675 1836

The cost of inventorias recognized as an expense and included in ‘cost of

sales’ amounted to K19.06 million (2017: K32.01 million},

There was inventory write down in the year ended 31 December 2018 of'

K11.017 million (2017: nil). In addition, there were reversals of invertory

write down K Nil million (2017: K2.3271 million).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 172 886 173378

Less provision for impairment losses {110 068) (107 314)

Nét trade receivables 62 818 66 064

Prepayments 46 303 49193

Other réceivables 19 872 111.527

128 993 226 784
The average credit period on sales of goods is 30. days. No friterest is charged on outstanding. trade
recelvables. The. expected credit loss {ECL) is mainly based on the ageing of the recelvable balances and
historical experience, The recewables are assessed on an individual basis or grouped inta homogeneous
groups and assessed for impairment collectively, depending on their significance. Moreover, trade
receivables are written off on a case to case basis if deemed not to’ be collectible on the assesément af
the underlying facts and circumstances.

The Company uses a provision matrix to measure the expected credit loss, of trade receivables.. Refer
below note for details on the impairment of trade receivables. Based on the industry- practices and the
business enviropment in which the entity opérates, management considers that the trade receivables are
credit impaired if the payments are more thari 90 days past due (Intercorinect more'than 9 maonths),
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

20

21

The Company performs on-going credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditign and monitors the
credit-worthiness of its custémers to which it grants credit in its ordanary course of business. The gross
carrying- amount of a financial asset is written off (either partlally ot in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect: of Tecovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount
due. Where the financial asset has. been written-off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement.

activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where récoveries are made, these are recognised-in
profit and loss,

‘There has beei no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the

current reporting period.

The éntity writes off a trade recéjvable when there is information indicatirig-that the debitor is in severe,
financial difficulty and there is: no realistic prospect of recovéry, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,. or when the trade receivables has ¢rossed

the law of limitation period past due, whichever occurs earfier, None of the trade recegivables that have
been written off is. subject to enforcement activities..

As the entity's h;stoncal credit loss experiénce does not show significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments ‘the provision for lpss: allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished betweéen the. Enttty s different customer base.

2018 2047
Balance as at 1 January 107 314 107 637
Transfer to credit<impaired 6 A57 1987
Amounts recovered (3 703) {2 310}
Balance as at 31 December 110 068 107 314
CONTRACT ASSESTS
Revenue frord post paid custerners: 8478 11 037
Revenue fram inferconnect customers 15201 16 579
Revenue from roaming customers _ 1438 509
Revenue from sale of handsets to corporate/enterprise Customers 8 298
Current 33 415 28125

Non-Current - -

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due from customers under Sale of Bundled Handsets
Contracts ,. Post” Paid contracts , Interconnect Contract and Roaming Contract that afite when the
Company recewes payments frorn customers iri line with a series of performance related milestones. The
Company will prewously have recognised a contract asset for any work performed. Any amdunt

previously récognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables, ak the point at which it is
invoiced to.the customei.

The directors of the Company ‘always msasuré the Expected Credit Loss on thé amounts due from
custemers , taking inte account the ageing of receivables, historical default experience and the industry
practices and theé business érvironment in. which the entity. operates. None of the amounts due from
custarners at the end of the reporting period is past due.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2018 2017
Cash and bank balances 32 258 2591
Bank ovardrafts (32 449) {21.657)

{191) {19 066)

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, .cash and cash’ equivalents comprisé the cash in hand, and
dep05|ts hefd at call with the bank, net of bank overdraft. Déposits held at call #arn interest at the

respective held at call rates. Cash at- banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily hank deposit
rates.
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21

2z

23

24

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The-Company has four overdraft facilities with Timits of up to K40 million and $12.36 miillion as shown
below. These facilities are subject to anhial review.

(i)  Citibank Zambia Limited _ $10 miflion 3 Months Liber + 1.65%.
()  Standard Chartéred Bank Zambia PLC $ 2.36 million 1 Months Libor + 2 %.
(iity Barclays Bank Zambia PLC K20 million ~ MPR +7%

{(vi) Stanbic Bank Zamibia Limited K20 million ~ MPR + 5%

The Company had drawn amounts as af the year-end of K 25.656 million and US$ 0.680 million
{2017: K Nil and US$ 2.166 million).

The overdraft {imit was not excéeded at any fime during the period and all the overdraft facilities are not
secured.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2018 2017

Trade payables 413 819 421 173
Accrued expenses 100 895 101 686
Other payables 7383 g 249

522 097 531 iG8
Trade payables are. non interest hearing and are normally. settled on 60 day terms. Accrued expenses
and other payables are non interest bearing and have an average term of six months.
The carrying amount.of the above payables and accrued expenses approximate their fair vajues because
of their short term nature.
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2018 2017
Amounts received. in advance from prepaid customiérs for delivery of
internet and voice service.
Deferred income: 101 608 101 645
Current 101 s08 101 646

Non-current - -

101 608 i01 646 _

Revenue refating to internet and voice services is recognised over time , when'a customer makes. usé of
the talk-time that was carried forward. Thete is:no significant change in contract ligbility balances during
the reporting period.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 2018 2017
Short termi lean 715 608 209 979
The short term borrowings is due to the following commergial banks:
Standard.
Charterec Citibank
bank Zamibia
Zambia Plc Limited Total
At'l January 2017 - - -
Draw down during the year - 397 125 397 125
Rep_'aym‘ents.in the year ) - {211.800) {211 800)
Unrealized foreign exchange difference - 24 654 24654
At 31 Decernber 2017 - 209979 208 979
Draw down duringthe year 647725 290'845 938570
Repayments in the year {59 634) (495 025} {554 659)
Unredlized foreign-excharige différence 127.517 {5 799} 121 718
At 31 December 2018 715 608 -__ 715608
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24 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

25

26

27

In May 2018 & July 2018 the Company obtained a short term credit facility from SCB-Bank for US$ 50 Million
and US$ 15 million respectively .The Loan carries an interest rate of 6 month Libor + 2.5 % per annum. The
facility is repayable within 12 months. The loan.is unsecured,

In July 2017 the Company obtained a short term credit facility from CITI Bank for US$ 50 'million at an interest
rate- of 1 month Libor + 1.25 % per annum. The facility was repayable within 12 months. The loan was
unsecured, The Company repaid the loan takeh from Citi Bank in the July 2018,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Legal proceedings

having obtained 'relévant.legal advice. that there will be no material losses atising from pending proceedings
against the Company.

The Company had some pending legal proceedings.as at 31 December 2018. The management is of the apinion:

Tax proceedings.

During the year, Zambia Revenué Authority {ZRA} issued administrative dssessments totaling to ZMW 2.466
million relating to. Withholding tax; Excise Duty and. Value Added Tax (VAT). The Company filed the responses,
with supporting évidence and, currently swaiting the ZRA's position.

However, .on the basis of ‘evaluation of above said assessments.., no provision has been made in the financial
staternents as. the Company's management does not consider that there'is probable [oss to the Co’mpan_y.

Taxes., duties and other demands 2018 2017
{Under adjudication / appeal / dispute)

Incorme Tax 1183 -
Value Added Tax ‘395 148 700
Excise Duty ‘888 -
TOTAL 2 466" 148 700
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditlire contracted (gross) for at the reportihg date but not recognised in _the-fihanc_ia_l statements is
as follows:

2018 2017
At 31 December 253 337 297 086
LEASES.
{a) Finance lease comimitments
Finance lease commitments-As & Lessee 2018
Particulars. Future minimum Present/Fair
lease payment Interest value
Not later than 1 year 175 819 84 509 91 310
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 702 697 225 045 477 652
Later than 5 years ' 301 597 27 482 274 115
1004 294 252 527 751 766
Total 1180113 337 036 843 076
Finance lease commitments-As a Lagsee 2017
Particulars Futtire minimum Present/Fair
‘lease payment Interest value
Not fater than 1 year _ _ 147 040 78.000 69 040
Laterthan 1 year and riot later than 5 years 588 160 227017 361 143
‘Later than 5 years ' 393 858 51952 341. 906
982 018 278969 703049
Total 1 125°058 356 969 772 089
{b) Obligations under finance lease 2018 2017
Current finance lease payable 91310 69 040
Mon-current finance lease payable 751 766 703.049
42 076 772 089 .
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27

28

29

LEASES (CONTINUED}
(b} Obligations under finance lease (continued) 2018 2017

The movement for the year is as follows:

At the beginning -of the year (772 089) {836 610}
{Additions)/retirement during the year (4 455) 7 303

Repayments during the year 61716 56 035

Unrealised exchange gain / {losses) gaing {128 244) 1183
Gross investmentin finance leases (843 076) (772 089)
Less: Unearned futtre finance income

on finance leases - -

Net obligations under finance lease (843 076) (772 089

The'Company enters into. finance leasing arrangements. The average term of.
finance ieases entered inte is. 10 years. Unguaranteed residual dues of assets
leased under the fmance Ieases at the balance sheet: date are estimated at K
Nil.

The interest rdte inherent in'the leases is fixed/variable ; atthe contract date
for ail of the lease term.

The Directors consider that the fair value. of the 'I'e_ases fs equal to their
carrying values as reflected in the balance sheet.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax. 230480 454 537
Adjustments for:

Interest intome (note 8) (793} (3 740}
Interest expense (note 10) 108817 B88.416

Depreciation expense (note 186) 345 780 400533

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables (note. 19) 2754 (323)
Amortisation of intangiblé assets (note 17) 10 D54 51981

Unrealised forex (gain)/loss 262172 22 967

Changes in working capitat?

- trade -and other receivables 77 368 32 392

- inventories 1161 32738

- trade and other payables 39 4032 {260 888}
Cash’'generated from operations 1.077 165 772 612

(.Ii) Reconciliation of li'abilit_ies arising from financing activities

1 January Financing cach iNon-cash 31 December
2018 flows ichanges 2018
Loans from financial Institutions 209 979 383 9011 121718 715 608
Forward contfacts - - - -
‘Other borrowings - - . - -
Finance leases 772°089 (61 716) 132699 843 072

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The company is owned by Bharti Airtel Zambla Holdings BV {BAZHBY) which
has 96.36% control of thé shares, The remnaining 3.64% ars-owned by public
investors through the Lusaka Stock Exchange ([uSE).

The following transactions were carried out with refated parties:
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29 RELATED. PARTY DISCLOSURES.

i) Purchase of goods and services

43

Name of related party Country of Relationship to ‘2018 2017
. incorporation  Company
Airtel {Seycheiles) Limited Seychelles Fellow subsidiary 5 8
Congo (DRCY Fellow subsidiary 1187 2 000
Airtel Conge (RDC) 8.A. {{formerly” -
known as Celtel Cango (RDC) S.a.r.1)
.Airtel Corigo S.A Congo B Fellow subsidiary 3 1
Airtel Gabor S.A, Gaban Fellow. subsidiary - 1
Airtel Madagascar S.A. Madagascar Fellow subsidiary 6 8
Airtel Malawf Limited Malawi Fellow subsidiary 1794 2 886
- Ajrtel Mobite' Commerce Limiited Zambia Fellow subsidiary ‘36 866 2 484
Alrtel Networks, Kenya Limited Kenya Fellow subsidiary 2719 3021
Alrtel Networks Liniited Nigeria Fellow subsidiary 360 45
Airtel Rwanda Limited Rwanda Felfow subsidiary 46 - 15
Airtel Tanzania Limited Tanzania Fellow subsidiary 509 1770
-Airtel Uganda Limited Uganda Fellow subsidiary 35 38
Bharti Airtel {UK) Limited United Kingdom  Fellow subsidiary 12 582 18623
Sri Lanka Fellow subsidiary 4
Bharti Airtel Lanka {Private) {imited - 1
Bharti Airtel Limited India Step up-parent. 4133 10 778
Bharti Airtel Services Limnited India Feliow subsidiary - 399
Network 121 Ltd. ' Mauritius Step up parent 5 155 98 491
Mxtra Data Lifnited India Fellow subsidiary 414 -
Bharti-Airtel Zambia Holddings B.v. Netherlands Holding Company 2701 -
‘Airtel (Ghana) Limiitet (**) Ghana Joint Venture - 13
Centum Learning Limited India * Othet rélated 1698 1680
party
70 212 125268
ii} Sale of goods and services
Name of related party Country of Relationship to-
incorporation  Company.
Airtel (Seychelles) Limited Seéychalles Fellow subsidiary: - 2
Congo- (DRE) Fellow subsidiary 9 907 5 045
Airtel Congo (RDE} S.A. {(formerly
known as Caltel Congo (RDC) S.a.r.1.)
Airtel Conge S.A Canigo B Fefiow supsidiary 4 [
Airtel Gabon S.A, Gabon Fellow subsidiary 1 3
Airtel Madagascar 5.A. Madagascar Fellow subsidiary. 5 7
Alrtel Malawi Limited Malawi Feliow subsidiary. 7 486 ‘2523
Airtel. Networks Kenya Limited Kenya Fellow subsidiary 1954 851
Airtel Netwarks Limited Nigeria Fellow subsidiary 4 403 62
Airtel Rwanda Limited Rwanda Fellow subsidiary 12 8
Airtel Tanzania Limited Tanzania Fellow subsidiary 655 6 386
Airtel Tchad S'A. Chad Fellow subsidiary B3 2
Airtel Uganda Limited Uganda Fellow subsidiary: 180 66
Bharti Airtel (UK} Limited United Kingdom  Fellow subsidiary 30 659 Z 574
Bharti Afrtel Limited India Step:up parent 8896 28 018
Celte! Niger S.A. Niger Fellow subsidiary 1 2
Jersey Airtel Limited Jersey Feliow subsidiary 1 5
Airtel. {Ghana) Limited (*¥) Ghana Joint Ventare - 14
Alrtel Mobile Commerce Limited Zambia Fellow subsidiary 4135 -
58 300 49 574
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29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

iii} Management fees expenses

Bharti Airtel International

(Netherlands) B.V. Nétherlands'
iv) Receivable from related parties
Marhe of related party Country of

’ incorparation
Airtel {Seychelles) Limited Seychelies

Airtel Conge (RDC) S.A. ((formerly.
known as Celtel Congo (RDC) S.a.r.l;)

Congo (DRE)

Airtel Congo 5.A Congo 8
Airtel Gabon 5.A. Gabori.
Airtel Madagascar $.A, Madagascar
Aijrtel Malawi Limited Matawi
Airtel Mobile Commerce Limited Zambia
Airtel Networks Kenya Lindited Kenya
Airtel Networks: Limited Nigeria
Airtel Rwanda Limited Rwanda
Airtel Tanzania Limited Tanzania
Alrtel Tchad S.A. Chad
Airtel Uganda Lirnited Uganda

Bhart! Airtel (UK} Limited

Airte! Congo (RDCJ S5.A. ((formerly
known as Celtel Congo (RDCY S.a.r.l))

United Kingdam

Bharti Airtel Lanka {Private) Limited Sri Lanka

Bharti Airtel Limited India.

Bharti Hexacom Limited Indiza

Celtel Niger 5,A. Niger

Jersey Airtel Limited. Jersey

Robi Axiata Limited (Associates _ Singapare

company af BISPL w.e.f. November 16;

$2016) o S

Airtel (Ghana) Limited (¥#*)} Ghana

Singapore Telecommunication Limited  Singaporg

v) Payable to related parties

Name of related party Country of
incorporation

Airtel (Seycheligs) Limited Seychelles

Congo (DRC})

-Airtel Congo. S.A Congo B
Airtel Gabon S.A, Gabon

Ajitel Madagascar S.A. Madagascar
Airtef Malaw{ Limited Malawi
Airtel Mobile Commerce Lirnited Zambia
Airtel Networks Kenya Limited Kenya

Airtel Networks Limited ' Nigeria
Airtel Rwanda. Limited Rwanda
Airtel Tanzania Limited Tanzania
Airtel Tchad S.A. Chad

Airtel Uganda Limited Uganda
Bharti-Airtel (UK) Limited United Kingdom
-Bharti-Airtel International Netherlands:

{Netherlands) B.V.

44

Holding Company

Relationship to
Company

‘Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

‘Fallow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary.
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiaty
Fellow. subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

-Feflow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Step up parent
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow: subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Joint Ventura
Significant
Influence
‘Company

Relationship fo
Company

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiaiy

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow-subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

‘Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow:subsidiary
Helding Company

2018 2017
42262 39 877
0,03 1.45.
23 363 11 480
11 8
11 9
i 1
15:230 7 313
61 465 80 432
1062 501
4 084 738
14 13
35 809 29 815
0.1 0.1
196 36
9 650 6 576.
0,3 0.02
855 618
- 33
0.69 0.38
- 0.48.
- 0.99

3 -
16 14.53
151 772 137 591
0.52 0.34
256 115
0.37 88
0.02 0.03
i30 109
2794 2242
35 340 498
2753 630
1094 ‘886
620 148,
2 059 1769
1.63 1.37
10:60 0.08
2 690 2036
7 504 §321
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29. RELATED PARTY DISCLDSURE_(CONTINUED)
v) Payable torélated parties {continued)

Name of Related Party

Bharti Airtel Limited
Bharti Airtel Services
Limited o
Bharti International
{Singapore) Pte Lid
Celtel Niger S.A,
Jersey Airtel Limited
Network 12§ Ltd:
Bharti Airtel Zarmbia
Holdings BV,

Africa Towers N.V.
Nxtra Data Lirnited
Centum Learning Limited

refated parcty recewables

-‘demand and aie at arm length.

following the best corporate governance practices.

of the group.

vi} Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employmérit benefits

Non-Executive
Jitoe Kayumba
Monica K. Musonda

Executive
Apoorva Mehrotra
Peter Correia *

Nqn—Executive_
Jito Kayumba
Monica K. Musanda

Executive
Péter Correia *

Country of incorporation Rélationship to 2018 2017
Company.
India Step up parent 635 o851
India Feliow subsidiary
- 44
Singapore Fellow subsidiary
- 5
Niger Fellow subsidiary 0.15 0.06
Jersey Fellow subsidiary D.20 0.15
Mauritius Step up parent 5431, 1465
Netherfands. Holding Company B
_ 2 701 -
Netherlands Fellow subsidiary 10 10
‘India Fellow subsidiary 339 4'9__2
India * Other related party 1 002 710
B85 372 174317
No. provisions for impaiiment losses. have been required in 2018 and 2017 for. any
Amiounts due from/to related parties carry no. intérest , are recewable{payable on
* QOther related parties” though not 'Related Parties’ as per the definition under IAS 24,
"Related party disclosures’,. have been included by way of & volintary; disclesure,
{**} In 2017, there was #@ichange in relationship from feliow subsidiary to joint venture-
35517 42 186
vii} Compensation of directors for the year ended 31 December 2018
Gut of _
Sitting Basic Pe‘r'forman_ce_ Country Housing
Fees Salary Bonus (i) Allowance Allowance Others Total
466 - - - - - 466.
593 - - - - - 593
- 2361 1352 115. 526 734 5088
_ - 598 - - 123 317 1038
1 059 2 960 1352 11& 649 1 050 7 185
Compensation of directors for the yvear-ended 31 December 2017
566 - - - - - 566
593 - - - = - 5483
- 3204 1826 1009 673 813 7525
1158 3204 1.009 673 813 8 684

1826

* Resigned as a Director of the Board,

(1) Bonus for the vear 2018 is on accrual basis/provisional figure.

peifarmance review,

45
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30.

31,

DIVIDENDS PROPOSED AND PAID

At 1 January - 673
Final dividends declared for the previous year 216 000 416 000
Interim dividend declared for the current year 124 80O _ -

Dividends paid . {540 800) {416-673)

At 31 December - il

Proposed for-approval at the Annual General Meeting

P'ropos_e_d dividends for'2018: Nil {2017: K4.00) per.share - 416 000

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LTABILITIES {FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS)

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amount and fair value of the financial instiuments
that are recogmsed in the finandial statements. The carrying amount of the financial assets and financial
ligbilities approximate thelr fair values becduse of their short term nature as shown below.

Classes and categories of financial instruments and their fair values
The following table combiries information about:

» classes of financial instruments based on their nature and characteristics;
» the carrying amounts of financial instruments;

= fair values of financial instruments, {except financial instruments whean carrying amount approximates
their fair value); and:

+ fair value hiefarchy levels of financial assets and financial liabiiitfes for which fair value was disclosed.

Fair value hnerarchy levels 1 to '3 are based on the degree to which the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entiiety, which are described as Tollows;

= Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted. prices {unadjusted) In active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

= Level 2 fair value. measurements are those derived from rnputs other-than guoted. prices includad
within Level 1 that are’observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or |nd|rectly {i.e.
derived from: prlces), and

« Level 3 fair valug: measurements: are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the:asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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AIRTEL NETWORKS ZAMBIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 Décember 2018

K_wacha '000

32.

33

34.

35,

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 2018 2017
The following contributions to pensions/funds were jnciluided within

the emiployee benefits expenseés:

Acn Zambia Pedision Fund Administrators Limited 7 333 7308
National Pension Scheme Authority 2429 2 390

DERIVATIVE FINANCTIAL INST_RU_ME_NT_S
The details.of derivative financial instruments are as follows:

Foreign-currency forward cortracts {assets) 665 2 467

Foreigh currericy forward contracts: (liabilities) (3 730) (3 237)

SEGMENT REPORTING

Maragement has deétermined the opérating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Exacutive
management committeé that are used to make - strategic decisions. The committes considers: the
business as a single operating segment, being Zambia operations, as th& information reported to the
executive management comwnittee for the purpose of strategic decision. making is riot presented per
product line.

The reportable operating segment derives its revenue primarily from the sale of voice and data services
to subscribers of the network and to foreign telephony -operstors when their subscrlbers utilise the
Airtel -Zambia network. Other revenue ctonsists of connectioh and subscription charges and sale of
mobile handsets to cistomers,

The executive management committee assesses the performance.of the operating ‘segment.based on a
measure of Earnings before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortisation.

The breakdown of the revenue from all services is shown in note 7.
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

‘There were no material subsequent events for the year ended 31 December 2018. The directors-are not

aware of any other matter or circumstances. since the financial year end and the date of this report, not
otherwise dealt with in the financial statements,. which significantly affects the financial .position of the
company and the results of its .operations,
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